ATN HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2017 AND 2016

1.

Corporate Information
ATN Holdings, Inc. (ATN or the Parent or the Company) was registered with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 12, 1969 under the name Jabpract Mining and
Industrial Corporation. On March 14, 1996, Jabpract Mining and Industrial Corporation changed
its corporate name to ATN Holdings, Inc. and its primary and secondary purposes were
amended to enable it to perform the acts of a holding company. On November 10, 2016, the
Company’s articles of incorporation was amended extending its corporate life for another fifty
(50) years from February 12, 2019. The amendment was approved by the SEC on November
21, 2016.
The common shares of ATN are listed and traded in the Philippine Stock Exchange. The
registered office address of ATN is 9th Floor Summit One Tower Bldg., 530 Shaw Blvd.,
Mandaluyong City. ATN Holdings, Inc. has no ultimate Parent company.
The accompanying financial statements were authorized for issue by the President on July 11,
2017.

2.

Basis of Preparation and Presentation
Basis of Financial Statements Preparation and Presentation
The accompanying financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, except for available-for-sale financial assets (AFS) and investment properties that
have been measured at fair values.
The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is the Company’s functional
currency. All values represent absolute amount except as otherwise indicated.
These financial statements are prepared for the purpose of complying with the requirements of
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR).
Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
Council.

3.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied for all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.
Current versus non-current classification
The Parent Company presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial
position based on current/non-current classification. An asset is current when it is:
•
•
•
•

Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
Expected to be realized within twelve months after the end of the reporting period; or
Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or use to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
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The Parent Company classifies all other assets as non-current.
A liability is current when:
•
•
•
•

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period; or
There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.

The Parent Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
highly liquid investments readily convertible to known amount of cash which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.
Financial Instruments
Date of Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the statements of financial position of
the Company when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Initial Recognition
All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Except for
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL, the initial measurement of financial instruments
includes transaction costs.
Determination of Fair Value
The fair value for instruments traded in active market at the reporting date is based on their
quoted market price. For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair
value is determined by using appropriate techniques or comparison to similar instruments for
which market observable prices exists.
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the same instruments or based on a valuation
technique, the Company recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value
in the statement of comprehensive income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type
of asset.
Classification of Financial Instruments
The Company classifies financial assets into the following categories, (i) At fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), (ii) Available-for-sale, (iii) Held-to-maturity and (iv) Loans and receivable.
The Company classifies its financial liabilities into financial liabilities at FVPL and other financial
liabilities. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired
or liabilities incurred and whether they are quoted in an active market. Management determines
the classification of its investments at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, reevaluates such designation at every reporting date.
As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company’s financial instruments are of the nature of AFS,
loans and receivables, and other financial liabilities.
AFS financial assets
AFS are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated on this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. Subsequent to initial recognition, AFS assets are
carried at fair value in the statements of financial position. Changes in the fair value are
recognized directly in equity account as “Unrealized gain on AFS financial assets”. Where the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in equity is included in statement of comprehensive income.
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Included under this category are shares of stock of publicly listed companies.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Company provides money, goods
or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivables. Loans and
receivables are carried at amortized cost in the statement of financial position. Amortization is
determined using the effective interest method less any impairment losses. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are
integral parts of the effective interest rate.
Included under this category are the Company’s cash and other receivables.
Other Financial Liabilities
Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated as at FVPL are
classified as other financial liabilities where the substance of the contractual arrangement
results in the Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to
the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares. The components of issued
financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are accounted for
separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after deducting from
the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of the liability
component on the date of issue.
After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on the issue and fees that are integral parts of the effective interest rate.
Any effects of restatement of foreign currency-denominated liabilities are recognized in the
statements of comprehensive income.
Included under this category are accounts payable and accrued expenses.
Reclassification of Financial Assets
A financial asset is reclassified out of the FVPL category when the following conditions are met
(i) the financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near
term; and (ii) there is a rare situation.
A financial asset that is reclassified out of the FVPL category is reclassified at its fair value on
the date of reclassification. Any gain or loss already recognized in the statements of
comprehensive income is not reversed. The fair value of the financial asset on the date of
reclassification becomes its new cost or amortized cost, as applicable.
Impairment
Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
(i) Assets carried at amortized cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or held-tomaturity investments carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The amount of the loss is recognized in the profit and loss accounts.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed.
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Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss
accounts, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized
cost at the reversal date.
(ii) Assets carried at cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that
is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a
derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity
instrument has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent periods.
(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are subject to impairment review at each end of the
reporting period. Impairment loss is recognized when there is objective evidence such as
significant financial difficulty of the issuer/obligor, significant or prolonged decline in market
prices and adverse economic indicators that the recoverable amount of an asset is below
its carrying amount.
Derecognition of Financial Instruments
Financial Assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial
assets) is derecognized where:
• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
• the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed
an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party.
• the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred the control of the asset.
Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Company could be required to repay.
Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in profit or loss.
Non-current Assets Held for Sale
The Company classifies its non-current asset (or disposal group) as held for sale if its carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. For this to be the case, the asset (or disposal group) must be available for immediate sale
in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
assets (or disposal groups) and its sale must be highly probable.
The Company measures its non-current asset (or disposal group) classified as held for sale at
the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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Input tax
Input tax represents 12% VAT input from purchases of goods and services. Input tax can be
claimed against output tax in the subsequent month.
Investment Properties
Investment properties consist of properties that are held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both and that is not occupied by the Company.
After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair value is based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not available, the Company uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow projections.
These valuations are reviewed annually by the Company. Investment property that is being
redeveloped for continuing use as investment property or for which the market has become
less active continues to be measured at fair value.
Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of, or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from service and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income in the year of retirement or
disposal.
Investment in Associates and Subsidiaries
In this separate financial statements, the Company’s investments in its associates and
subsidiaries are accounted for using the cost method as allowed under PAS 27.
Under the cost method, the Company recognizes income from the investment only to the extent
that the Company received distributions from accumulated profits of the investee from date of
acquisition.
A parent controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with an investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
that investee. Specifically, control is achieved if and only if the a parent company has all the
following;
(i) Power over the investee;
(ii) Exposure rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary; and
(iii) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the parent
company’s returns.
The Parent reassesses whether or not it controls a subsidiary if facts and circumstances
indicates that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.
The Company derecognizes an investment only when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the assets expire, or when it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity.
Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
The Company’s property and equipment are subject to impairment testing. All other individual
assets’ or cash generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). As a result, some assets are
tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset or cash-generating unit’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting market conditions less cost to sell and value in use, based on an internal
discounted cash flow evaluation. Impairment loss is charged pro-rata to the other assets in the
cash generating unit.
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All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously
recognized may no longer exist and the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted to the
recoverable amount resulting in the reversal of the impairment loss.
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Accounts payables are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or
supplied and have been invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier. Accounts payable are
non-interest bearing and are stated at their original invoice amount since the effect of
discounting is immaterial.
Accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied but
have not been paid, invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier, including amounts due to
employees.
Deposits
Deposits represent security deposits from clients and reservation fees from real estate buyers.
The same will be applied to contract price when the buyer committed to purchase the unit.
Reservation fees are non-refundable should the buyer decided not to go through with the
acquisition of the property.
Equity
Share capital is determined using the par value of shares that have been issued and fully paid.
Additional paid-in capital includes any premiums received on the initial issuance of share
capital. Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from
additional paid-in capital, net of any related income tax benefits.
Unrealized gain/loss on AFS financial assets pertains to mark-to-market valuation of availablefor-sale financial assets.
Retained earnings (Deficit) include all current and prior period results of operations as
disclosed in the statements of comprehensive income.
Revenue and Cost Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
(i) Interest – interest income from bank deposits is recognized as interest accrues taking into
account the effective yield on the related asset.
(ii) Profit from assets sold or exchanged – recognized when the title to the asset is transferred
to the buyer or if the collectability is reasonably assured. If collectability is not reasonably
assured, revenue is recognized only to the extent cash is received.
(iii) Rental from Operating Leases - properties leased out under operating leases are included
in investment property in the statement of financial position. Lease income is recognized
over the term of the lease on a straight-line basis.
(iv) Dividends - Dividends are recognized in the period in which they are declared.
Cost and expenses are recognized in the statements of comprehensive income upon utilization
of the assets or services or at the date they are incurred.
Income Taxes
Current tax liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authority. The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that have been enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of reporting period.
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Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences at
the end of reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Under the balance sheet liability method, with certain exceptions, deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deferred tax asset is to be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled.
Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in the statements of comprehensive income. Only changes in deferred tax assets or
liabilities that relate to a change in value of assets or liabilities that is charged directly to equity
are charged or credited directly to equity.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when present obligation will probably lead to an outflow of economic
resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the outflow may
still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or constructive
commitment that has resulted from past events, for example legal disputes for onerous
contract.
Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation,
based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period, including the
risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Any reimbursement expected to
be received in the course of settlement of the present obligation is recognized, if virtually
certain, as a separate asset at an amount not exceeding the balance of the related provision.
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligation as a whole. In addition, long
term provisions are discounted at their present values, where time value of money is material.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless
the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.
Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Earnings (Loss) per share is determined by dividing the profit (loss) for the year by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the fiscal year.
Related Party Transactions and Relationships
Related party relationships exist when one party has the ability to control directly or indirectly
through one or more of the intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist
between and/or among the reporting entity and its key management personnel, directors or its
shareholders. Transactions between related parties are accounted for at arm’s length prices or
on terms similar to those offered to non-related entities in an economically comparable market.
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In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of
the relationship and not merely the legal form.
Payable to related parties are non-interest bearing borrowings. These are measured at their
original amounts and have no fixed repayment period.
Events After the Reporting Period
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial position
at the end of reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post
year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when material.

4.

Changes in Accounting Standards
New Accounting Standards and Amendments to Existing Standards Effective as of April 1,
2016
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except
for the adoption of the following amendments to PFRS effective beginning April 1, 2016.
Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements – Disclosure Initiative
The amendments are intended to assist entities in applying judgment when meeting the
presentation and disclosure requirements in PFRS. These clarify the following:
• That entities shall not reduce the understandability of their financial statements by either
obscuring material information with immaterial information or aggregating material items that
have different natures or functions;
• That specific line items in the statements of income and OCI and the statements of financial
position may be disaggregated;
• That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the Notes to Financial
Statements;
• That the share of OCI of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity
method must be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and classified between those
items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
These amendments do not have any impact on the Company.
Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization
The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible assets. The amendments are
effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2016, with early
adoption permitted. The amendment does not have any significant impact on the Company’s
financial position or performance.
Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 41, Agriculture - Bearer
Plants
The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the definition of
bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41. Instead, PAS 16 will apply. After
initial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cost (before
maturity) and either the cost model or revaluation model (after maturity). The amendments also
require that produce growing on bearer plants will remain in the scope of PAS 41 measured at
fair value less costs to sell. For government grants related to bearer plants, PAS 20,
Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance, will apply. The
amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2016,
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with early adoption permitted. These amendments do not have any impact to the Company as
the Company does not have any bearer plants.
Amendments to PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements - Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements
The amendments allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entities
already applying PFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate financial
statements will have to apply that change retrospectively. For first-time adopters of PFRS
electing to use the equity method in its separate financial statements, they will be required to
apply this method from the date of transition to PFRS. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. The
amendment does not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial position or
performance.
Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, PFRS 12, Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities, and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception.
These amendments clarify that the exemption in PFRS 10 from presenting consolidated
financial statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, when
it measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value. They also clarify that only a subsidiary of an
investment entity that is not an investment entity itself and that provides support services to the
investment entity parent is consolidated. The amendments also allow an investor (that is not an
investment entity and has an investment entity associate or joint venture) to retain the fair value
measurement applied by the investment entity associate or joint venture to its interests in
subsidiaries when applying the equity method. These amendments are not applicable to the
consolidated financial statements. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after April 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments do not have any
impact on the Company’s financial statements.
Amendments to PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations
The amendments to PFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an
interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business
must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting. The
amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on
the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control is retained.
In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do
not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are under
common control of the same ultimate controlling party.
The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively effective
for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. The
amendment does not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial position or
performance.
PFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts
PFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate
regulation, to continue applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory deferral
account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS. Entities that adopt PFRS 14 must
present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate line items in the statement of
comprehensive income. The standard requires disclosure of the nature of, and risks associated
with, the entity’s rate-regulation and the effects of that rate-regulation on its financial
statements. PFRS 14 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2016. This
standard does not apply since the Company is not a first-time adopter of PFRS.
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Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2016 and do not have any material impact to the Company’s
financial statements. They include:


PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in
Methods of Disposal
The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal
through sale to a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be
considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan.
There is, therefore, no interruption of the application of the requirements in PFRS 5. The
amendment also clarifies that changing the disposal method does not change the date of
classification.



PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Servicing Contracts
PFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a
transferred asset that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a
servicing contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial
asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance
in PFRS 7 in order to assess whether the disclosures are required. The amendment is to
be applied such that the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute continuing
involvement will need to be done retrospectively. However, comparative disclosures are
not required to be provided for any period beginning before the annual period in which the
entity first applies the amendments.



PFRS 7, Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial
Statements
This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting
of financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim
financial report unless they provide a significant update to the information reported in the
most recent annual report.



PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Regional Market Issue Regarding Discount Rate
This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is
denominated, rather than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no
deep market for high quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates
must be used.



PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of Information ‘Elsewhere in the Interim
Financial Report’
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim
disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by crossreference between the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within
the greater interim financial report (e.g., in the management commentary or risk report).

New Accounting Standard, Amendments to Existing Standards and Interpretations Effective
Subsequent to March 31, 2017
The standards, amendments and interpretations which have been issued but not yet effective
as at March 31, 2017 are disclosed below. Except as otherwise indicated, the Company does
not expect the adoption of the applicable new and amended PFRS to have a significant impact
on its financial position or performance.
Effective 2018
Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows
The amendments to PAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains
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or losses). On initial application of the amendments, entities are not required to provide
comparative information for preceding periods. They are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after April 1, 2017, with earlier application being permitted.
Amendments to PAS 12, Income taxes – Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized
Losses
The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources
of taxable profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should
determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may
include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.
Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application of
the amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be
recognized in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate),
without allocating the change between opening retained earnings and other components of
equity. Entities applying this relief must disclose that fact. Early application of the amendments
is permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Company.
Effective 2019
Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property – Transfers of Investment Property
The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development, into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s
intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The
amendments should be applied prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2019. Retrospective
application is only permitted if that is possible without the use of hindsight. The amendments
are not expected to have any impact on the Company.
Philippine IFRIC Interpretation 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
The interpretation clarifies that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a nonmonetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the
transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognizes the nonmonetary asset or
nonmonetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, then the entity must determine a date of the transactions for each payment
or receipt of advance consideration. Entities may apply the interpretation on a fully
retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity may apply the interpretation prospectively to all
assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially recognized on or after the beginning
of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation or the beginning of a
prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the financial statements of the
reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation.
The Company does not expect the adoption of this interpretation to have any significant impact
on the financial statements.
Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment – Classification and Measurement of Sharebased Payment Transactions
The amendments are intended to clarify following:
•
•
•

Accounting for cash-settled share-based payment transactions that include a
performance condition;
Classification of share-based payment transactions with net settlement features; and
Accounting for modifications of share-based payment transactions from cash-settled to
equity settled
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They are effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. On adoption, entities
are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but retrospective
application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and other criteria are met. Early
application of the amendment is permitted.
Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts – Applying PFRS 9 ‘Financial Instrument’ with
PFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’
The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
instruments standard, before implementing the forthcoming insurance contracts standard. They
allow entities to choose between the overlay approach and the deferral approach to deal with
the transitional challenges. The overlay approach gives all entities that issue insurance
contracts the option to recognize in other comprehensive income, rather than profit or loss, the
volatility that could arise when PFRS 9 is applied before the new insurance contracts standard
is issued. On the other hand, the deferral approach gives entities whose activities are
predominantly connected with insurance an optional temporary exemption from applying PFRS
9 until the earlier of application of the forthcoming insurance contracts standard or January 1,
2021. The overlay approach and the deferral approach will only be available to an entity if it has
not previously applied PFRS 9. The amendments are not applicable to the Company since
there are no activities that are predominantly connected with insurance or issue insurance
contracts. They are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.
PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014)
PFRS 9 (2014) replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and
supersedes the previously published versions of PFRS 9 that introduced new classifications
and measurement requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting model (in
2013). PFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial
assets, including a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment, guidance on own
credit risk on financial liabilities measured at fair value and supplements the new general hedge
accounting requirements published in 2013. PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge accounting
requirements that represent a major overhaul of hedge accounting and introduces significant
improvements by aligning the accounting more closely with risk management. The new
standard is to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company is still assessing the potential impact on its
financial statements resulting from the application of PFRS 9.
PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
PFRS 15 replaces PAS 11, Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue, IFRIC 13, Customer
Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 18, Transfer of Assets from Customers and SIC-31, Revenue Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. The new standard introduces a new
revenue recognition model for contracts with customers which specifies that revenue should be
recognized when (or as) a company transfers control of goods or services to a customer at the
amount to which the company expects to be entitled. Depending on whether certain criteria are
met, revenue is recognized over time, in a manner that best reflects the company’s
performance, or at a point in time, when control of the goods or services is transferred to the
customer. The standard does not apply to insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease
contracts, which fall in the scope of other PFRSs. It also does not apply if two companies in the
same line of business exchange nonmonetary assets to facilitate sales to other parties.
Furthermore, if a contract with a customer is partly in the scope of another IFRS, then the
guidance on separation and measurement contained in the other PFRS takes precedence.
The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with
early adoption permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans
to adopt the new standard on the required effective date.
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Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2014-2016 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after April 1, 2018 and will not have any material impact to the Company’s
financial statements. They include:


PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
The amendment deleted the short-term exemptions in paragraphs E3-E7 of PFRS 1,
because they have now served their intended purpose.



PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
The amendment clarified the scope of the standard by specifying that the disclosure
requirements in the standard, except for those in paragraphs B10-B16, apply to an entity’s
interests listed in paragraph 5 that are classified as held for sale, as held for distribution or
as discontinued operations in accordance with PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations.



PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
The amendment clarified that the election to measure at fair value through profit or loss an
investment in associate or a joint venture that is held by an entity that is a venture capital
organization, or other qualifying entity, is available for each investment in an associate or
joint venture on an investment-by-investment basis, upon initial recognition.

Effective 2019
PFRS 16, Leases
On January 13, 2016, the IASB issued its new standard, PFRS 16, Leases, which replaces
PAS 17, the current leases standard, and the related Interpretations.
Under the new standard, lessees will no longer classify their leases as either operating lease or
finance leases in accordance with PAS 17. Rather, lessees will apply the single-asset model.
Under this model, lessees will recognize the assets and related liabilities for most leases on
their statement of financial position, and subsequently, will depreciate the lease assets and
recognize interest on the lease liabilities in their profit or loss. Leases with a term of 12 months
or loss or for which the underlying asset is of low value are exempted from these requirements.
The accounting by lessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward the
principles of lessor accounting under PAS 17. Lessors, however, will be required to disclose
more information in their financial statements, particularly on the risk exposure to residual
value.
The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. Earlier
application is not permitted until the FRSC has adopted the new revenue recognition standard.
When adopting PFRS 16, an entity is permitted to use either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective application, with options to use certain transition reliefs.
Deferred
PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
These amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
PFRS 10 and those in PAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require that a full gain or loss is
recognized when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not).
A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a
business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. These amendments are originally
effective from annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2016. This mandatory adoption date
was later on deferred indefinitely pending the final outcome of the IASB’s research project on
International Accounting Standards 28. Adoption of these amendments when they become
effective will not have any impact on the financial statements.
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5.

Summary of Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates
The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of the
assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgments are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
(i) Judgments
The following judgments were applied which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements.
Determination of functional currency
The Company has determined that its functional currency is the Philippine peso which is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.
Determination of Control
The Company controls an entity if and only if the Company has (i) Power over the entity, (ii)
Exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the entity, and (iii) The ability to
use its power over the entity to affect the amount of Company’s returns.
The Company regularly reassesses whether it controls an investee, if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more elements of controls above.
As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company determined that it exercise control over its
subsidiaries.
Classification of financial assets
In classifying its financial assets, the Company follows the guidance of PAS 39. In making the
judgment, the Company evaluates its intention, marketability of the instrument and its ability to
hold the investments until maturity. Financial assets classifications are disclosed in Note 3.
As of March 31, categories of financial assets include AFS and Loans and receivable.
Distinction between investment properties and owner-occupied properties
The Company determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. If an
insignificant portion is leased out under the operating lease, the property is treated as property
and equipment. If the property is not occupied and is held to earn, it is treated as Investment
property.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions cannot be sold separately as of the end of reporting period, the
property is accounted for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use to
the production or supply of services or for administrative purposes. Judgment is applied in
determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as
investment property. The Company considers each property separately in making its judgment.
Accordingly, the condominium units and parking lots are classified as investment properties.
Operating leases – Company as lessor
The Company has entered into property leases on a portion of its investment property. The
Company has determined that it retains all significant risks and rewards of ownership of those
properties which are leased out on operating leases.
The Company’s rental income amounted to P346,847 in 2017 and P283,725 in 2016.
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Provision and contingencies
Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and contingencies.
(ii) Estimates
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation of uncertainty
at end of reporting period, that have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:
Estimating allowance for impairment losses on receivables
The Company maintains allowance for impairment losses at a level considered adequate to
provide for potential uncollectible accounts. The level of allowance for impairment losses is
evaluated by management on the basis of factors affecting collectability of the receivables. In
addition, a review of the accounts designed to identify accounts to be provided with allowance,
is made on a continuing basis.
Determination of fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
The Company measures fair value of financial instruments using the following fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
Level 1
Included in the Level 1 category are assets and liabilities that are measured in whole or
in part by reference to published quotes in an active market. An asset or liability is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory
agency and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm’s length basis.
Level 2
Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).
Level 3
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs).
Estimating fair value of investment properties
The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for similar properties and
other contracts. In the absence of such information, the Company determines the amount
within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgment, the Company
considers information from a variety of sources including:
1. current prices in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or location
(or subject to different lease or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences;
2. recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any
changes in economic conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred at
those prices; and
3. appraisal of independent qualified appraisers.
The Company’s investment properties were appraised by an independent firm of appraisers
which is an industry specialist in valuing these types of investment properties. For lots, raw land
and condominium units, the value were arrived at using the Sales Comparison Approach. This
is a comparative approach to value that considers the sales of similar substitute properties and
related market data and establishes a value estimate by processes involving comparison,
listings and offerings. The value of improvements was determined under the Cost approach.
The approach is based on the reproduction cost of the subject property, less depreciation, plus
the value of the land to which an estimate of entrepreneurial incentive is commonly added.
Investment properties amounted to P51.20 million and P61.37 million as of March 31, 2017 and
2016, respectively.
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Impairment of investment in and advances to associates
The Company assesses impairment on assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Several factors are
considered which could trigger that impairment has occurred. Though management believes
that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values reflected in the financial statements
are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may materially affect
the assessment of recoverable values and any resulting impairment loss could have material
adverse effect on the results of operations.
The net carrying value of Investment in and Advances to Associates as of March 31, 2017 and
2016 is as follows:
2017
Gross carrying Allowance for
amount
impairment

Net carrying
value

Gross carrying
amount

2016
Allowance for
impairment

Net carrying
value

Investments in:
ATN Phils. Solar Energy Group, Inc. P 336,425,000 P
- P 175,625,000
- P 336,425,000 P 175,625,000 P
Mariestad Mining Corporation
(MMC)
7,000,000
7,000,000
7,000,000
7,000,000
182,625,000
7,000,000
175,625,000
343,425,000
7,000,000
336,425,000
Advances to:
Sierra Madre Consolidated
Mines (SMCM)
7,450,000
7,450,000
7,450,000
7,450,000
P 350,875,000 P 14,450,000 P 336,425,000 P 190,075,000 P 14,450,000 P 175,625,000

Recognition of Deferred tax asset
The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets at each reporting dates and
reduces deferred tax assets to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient income will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. However, there is no
assurance that the Company will generate sufficient taxable profit to allow all or part of its
deferred tax asset to be utilized.
The Company’s deferred tax assets amounted to P2.4 million both in 2017 and 2016.

6.

Fair Value Measurement
The company measures fair value of assets and liabilities using the following fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, assets and liabilities carried at fair values represents AFS and
investment properties. The fair value of listed AFS financial assets was determined by
reference to the closing prices of the Philippine Stock Exchange as at the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, AFS financial assets are carried under Level 1 (see Note 5). The fair
values of investment properties as discussed in Note 5 was obtained through valuations made
by an independent property appraiser. The fair value is determined similar to Level 2.
The fair value of “Cash”, “Other current asset”, “Deposits” and other accounts payable
approximates their carrying value of March 31, 2017 and 2016.

7.

Financial Instruments, Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are liquidity risk, credit risk,
and market risk. Risk management policies are summarized below.
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity or funding risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from either the
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inability to sell financial assets quickly at their fair values; or counterparty failing on repayment
of a contractual obligation; or inability to generate cash inflows as anticipated.
Liquidity risk is a risk due to uncertain liquidity. An institution may suffer liquidity problem when
its credit rating falls. The Company is also exposed to liquidity risk if markets on which it
depends on are subject to loss of liquidity.
The Company manages its liquidity profile to: a) ensure that adequate funding is available at
all times; b) meet commitments as they arise without incurring unnecessary costs; and c) be
able to access funding when needed at the least possible cost.
Funding is principally sourced through advances or collection of advances to related parties.
As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, accounts payable and accrued expenses have maximum
maturities of less than 1 year. “Deposits”, “Subscription payable” and “Advances from related
parties” do not have fixed repayment period but management believes that settlement is
expected after 12 months but not more than 5 years.
Credit Risk
Credit risk is risk due to uncertainty in a counterparty’s (also called an obligor) ability to meet its
obligation.
Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying amount of the
financial assets as shown on the face of statements of financial position (or in the detailed
analysis provided in the notes to financial statements). Credit risk, therefore, is only disclosed in
circumstances where the maximum potential loss differs significantly from the financial asset’s
carrying amount.
The table below shows the gross maximum exposure to credit risk of the Company as of March
31, 2017 and 2016. Net maximum exposure is the effect after considering the collaterals and
other credit enhancements.
Gross maximum exposure
2016
2017
Cash in bank
1,340,121
P
5,247,877 P
Available-for-sale investments
42,037,122
22,201,700
Advances to related parties
60,696,149
58,643,067
P 86,092,644 P 104,073,392
Credit quality of the Company’s assets as of March 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

2017
Cash in bank
Available-for-sale investments
Advances to related parties:
Stockholders and related
companies
Subsidiaries

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due
High
Standard
but not
grade
grade
impaired
P 5,247,877 P
P
22,201,700
-

P

28,482,062
22,711,005
5,247,877 P 73,394,767 P

-

Past due
and
impaired
P
-

Total
P 5,247,877
22,201,700

7,450,000
35,932,062
22,711,005
P 7,450,000 P 86,092,644
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2016
Cash in bank
Available-for-sale investments
Advances to related parties:
Stockholders and related
companies
Subsidiaries

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due
High
Standard
but not
grade
grade
impaired
P 1,340,121 P
P
42,037,122
-

P

27,535,144
25,711,005
1,340,121 P 95,283,271 P

-

Past due
and
impaired
P
-

Total
P 1,340,121
42,037,122

7,450,000
34,985,144
25,711,005
P 7,450,000 P 104,073,392

Financial assets were graded as follows:
High grade cash in bank are short-term placements and working cash fund placed, invested or
deposited in banks belonging to the top banks in the Philippines in terms of resources and
profitability.
Standard grade accounts are active accounts with propensity of deteriorating to mid-range age
buckets. These accounts are typically not impaired as the counterparties generally respond to
credit actions and update their payments accordingly.
Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of change in fair value of financial instrument from fluctuation in foreign
exchange rates (currency risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prices (price
risk), whether such change in price is caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or
its issuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.
Market risk represents what the Company would lose from price volatilities. Market risk can be
measured as the potential gain or loss in a position or portfolio that is associated with a price
movement of a given probability over a specified time horizon.
The Company manages market risk by evenly distributing capital among investment
instruments in different financial institution.
The Company is not exposed to currency risk and interest rate risk. Sensitivity analysis of price
risk exposure follows:
Price risk
The Company’s price risk exposure at year end relates to financial assets whose values will
fluctuate as a result of changes in market price, principally, AFS financial assets. Observed
volatility rates of the fair values of Company’s investments held at fair value and their impact on
the Company’s equity as at March 31, 2017 and 2016 is shown below:

% change in market values
+2%
-2%

Impact on equity
2016
2017
407,062
10,354
(407,062)
(10,354)

Changes in fair value of Available for sale investment are charged to equity and therefore do
not affect profit and loss.
Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder value. The
Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to these ratios in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities.
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No changes have been made in the objective, policies and processes as they have been
applied in previous years.
The financial ratio at the year end, which is within the acceptable range of the Company, is as
follows:

Equity
Total assets
Ratio

8.

2016
2017
P 478,929,784 P 482,484,101
563,227,204
704,943,464
0.86
0.68

Cash in Bank
Cash in bank generally earns interest based on prevailing bank deposit rates. Cash in bank
amounted to P5,247,877 and P1,340,121 as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.

9.

Non-current Assets Held for Sale
In prior years, the Company entered into a contract to sell for the sale of its investment properties
at a total contract price of P21.67 million. Payments are made in equal monthly installments over a
period of 10 years. In 2017, management believes that with the cumulative payments to date, it is
reasonably expected that the remaining balance will be faithfully completed by the buyer. Hence,
the cost of investment property subject of the contract to sell was reclassified to Non-current asset
held-for-sale during 2017.
The breakdown of this account as of March 31, 2017 is as follows:

Carrying value at the time of reclassification
Impairment loss recognized in profit or loss
P

19,947,915
600,166
19,347,749

During 2017, the Company recognized impairment loss amounting to P600,166 after the assets
were measured at lower of cost or fair value less cost to sell. The impairment loss is reported as
part of administrative expenses in the Parent Company’s statement of income.
Consistent with the reclassification of the investment properties, the related liabilities of the assets
held for sale were also reclassified to current liabilities amounting to P14,158,181 as of March 31,
2017. These liabilities comprise the payments made by the other party in the aforesaid contract to
sell.
Management expects to record the sale of the above investment properties within the fiscal year
ended March 31, 2018.

10.

Other Current Asset
This account represents input tax (VAT) arising from purchase of goods and services. Input
VAT can be applied against the Company’s output tax in the following month. Input VAT
amounted to P207,421 and P155,297 as of March 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
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11.

Investments in Subsidiaries and Associates
This account consists of the following:

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in associates
Balance, beginning
Subscription during the year
Balance, ending
Allowance for impairment losses
Total Investments in associates
Total investments in subsidiaries and associates
(i)

P

2017
227,000,000 P

2016
227,000,000

P

182,625,000
160,800,000
343,425,000
(7,000,000)
336,425,000
563,425,000 P

182,625,000
182,625,000
(7,000,000)
175,625,000
402,625,000

Investment in subsidiaries
The details of this account as of March 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

Palladian Land Development, Inc. (PLDI)
Managed Care Phils., Inc. (MCPI)
Advanced Home Concept Development Corporation (AHCDC)

% of ownership
Amount
100% P 200,000,000
100%
25,000,000
100%
2,000,000
P 227,000,000

PLDI was incorporated on June 21, 1989, primarily to acquire by purchase, lease,
donation or otherwise, and to own, use, improve, develop, subdivide, sell, mortgage,
exchange, lease, develop and hold for investment or otherwise, real estate of all kinds,
whether improve, manage or otherwise dispose of buildings, houses, apartments and
other structures of whatever kind, together with their appurtenances.
MCPI was established on April 7, 1998, to establish, maintain, adopt, operate, manage,
and engage in the business of developing and promoting prepaid medical, health
maintenance and related services like clinics, laboratories, pharmacies, research centers,
hospitals and emergency facilities for the treatment, care and relief of the sick, injured or
otherwise infirm persons including indigent patients including the care and treatment of
maternity cases, with the aim of providing and offering to the public, a comprehensive,
systematic and prevention-oriented concept of medical and health maintenance programs.
AHCDC was registered and incorporated with the SEC on March 14, 1998, primarily to
acquire by purchase, lease, donation or otherwise, and to own, use, improve, develop,
subdivide, sell, mortgage, exchange, lease, develop and hold for investment or otherwise,
real estate of all kinds, whether improve, manage or otherwise dispose of buildings,
houses, apartments and other structures of whatever kind, together with their
appurtenances.
All subsidiaries are incorporated and domiciled in the Philippines.
As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, the management believes that no impairment loss on
investment in subsidiaries is necessary.
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(ii)

Investment in Associates
This account consists of the following:

2017
Cost
Beginning of the year
ATN Phils. Solar Energy Group, Inc. (ATN Solar)
Mariestad Mining Corporation (MMC)
Additions during the year (ATN Solar)
Disposal during the year
Allowance for impairment losses

2016

P 175,625,000 P 181,625,000
7,000,000
7,000,000
188,625,000
182,625,000
160,800,000
(6,000,000)
182,625,000
343,425,000
(7,000,000)
(7,000,000)
P
175,625,000
P 336,425,000

ATN Solar
ATN Solar is a grantee of a 25-year Renewable Energy Contract (service contract) with
the Department of Energy (DOE) under Republic Act 9513 (the RA). The service contract
grants ATN Solar the exclusive right to explore develop and utilize the solar energy source
within Rodriguez, Rizal, as its contract area. More specifically, the contract includes
setting up a 30 MW Solar PV Project (the Project). The project is expected to generate a
gross capacity of 33 MW peak of direct current and 30 MW of alternating current to be
distributed within Metro Manila with projected revenue of P540 Million per year for the next
25 years.
The Project contains a 2-year pre-development stage and another 2 years for
development stage, after which construction of power plants and connection to distribution
network is to commence.
On March 14, 2017, the Company subscribed for additional 160,800,000 shares with a par
value of P1 bringing the Company’s equity interest to 48.05% from 46.77%. From the total
subscription, P40.4 million have been paid in cash and the balance is reported as part of
“Subscription payable” in the liabilities section of the statement of financial position.
During 2016, various payments were made for its share subscription from ATN Solar
totaling to P64,025,050.
As of March 24, 2017, significant milestones have been successfully achieved by ATN
Solar including a loan facility from a local lender for the purchase and installation of solar
panels. Once it become operational, ATN Solar can sell electricity to power distributors of
up to P6.10/kWh.
As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, balance of subscription payable amounted to
P156,943,700 and P36,543,700, respectively.
On March 14, 2016, the Parent Company sold 6 million shares of ATN Solar to Unipage
Management, Inc. (UMI) with a carrying value of P1 per share subject to the following
conditions:
•
•
•

the Project should complete all governmental and grid approvals;
the Company should deliver the shares of ATN Solar within 12 months from
execution of the Investment Agreement;
the Company should cause the registration of the shares sold to UMI in the stock
and transfer book of ATN Solar.
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Following such disposal, the Company’s ownership interest in ATN Solar was reduced to
46.83% in 2016. The Company recognized a gain on sale of its investment in ATN Solar
amounting to P12 million in 2016.
The latest financial information of ATN Solar is as follows:

Total assets
Total liabilities
Net expenses
Cash flow from:
Operating activities
Investing activities
Financing activities

December 31,
2015
2016
P 737,566,592 P 526,541,363
210,458,117
50,954,576
4,018,679
1,409,190
(3,315,239)
(181,634,984)
167,932,509

1,036,351
(243,529,271)
255,257,676

ATN Solar’s fiscal period is January 1 to December 31. As of December 31, 2016, ATN
Solar has not commenced commercial operation and still in a pre-operating stage.
MMC
In 2007, the Company entered into an investment agreement with MMC to participate in
the extraction of manganese ores in the former’s mining site. The Company’s participation
is in the form of providing financial resources to undertake the mining operations. The
Company has financed a total of P7 million that is equivalent to 25% equity interest in
MMC. Due to the non-commencement of mining operation, the Company provided a full
impairment loss on its investment in MMC. Furthermore, no financial information is
available for MMC for the last 5 years.

12.

Available-for-Sale Investments
Investment in AFS securities represents listed and unlisted shares of Transpacific Broadband
Group International, Inc. (TBGI), a publicly listed company in the Philippine Stock Exchange.
Fair value was determined through reference to published price quotations.
The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of this account at the beginning and end of the fiscal
year is as follows:

Balance, April 1
Disposals
Changes in fair value
Impairment loss
Balance, March 31

2016
2017
P 42,037,122 P 42,946,758
(19,798,222)
(878,096)
(37,200)
(31,540)
P 22,201,700 P 42,037,122

On March 15, 2017, the Company disposed its AFS investment in TBGI shares to Unipage
Management, Inc. for P1.80 per share, totaling to P19,908,826, with a gain on sale of
P10,727,536.
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The breakdown of the shares of stocks is as follows:

As of March 31, 2017
No. of shares Carrying value
AFS securities
Listed
Unlisted

310,000
13,000,000
13,310,000

P
P

As of March 31, 2016
No. of shares
Carrying value
11,370,459
13,000,000
24,370,459

517,700
21,684,000
22,201,700

P
P

20,353,122
21,684,000
42,037,122

Changes in fair value are reported separately in the statement of comprehensive income as
“Unrealized gain on available-for-sale investments – net of deferred income tax”.

13.

Investment Properties
As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, this account consists of the following:

Commercial condominium units
Residential units
Parking lots
Vacant lots

P

P

2017
16,450,000 P
5,145,900
16,392,040
2,700,000
40,687,940 P

2016
36,397,915
5,145,900
17,127,040
2,700,000
61,370,855

On March 27, 2014, certain investment properties were re-appraised to properly reflect its fair
market value. The appraisal resulted to an increase in value of investment amounting to P2.1
million. The fair market value is determined by a firm of independent appraiser on March 4,
2014 using the Sales Comparison Approach, a comparative approach valuation that considers
the sale of similar or substitute properties and related market data and establishes a value
estimate by processes involving comparison. Accordingly, the Company categorized these
condominium units under Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. Management believes that there
are no present material factors that would significantly increase or decrease the fair value of
these properties as of March 31, 2017.
Residential units are located at Riverside Village, Pasig City. Prices of foreclosed properties
located near the properties owned were used by management as a guide in determining fair
value of its own property. The fair value amounted to P7,845,900. The property is valued in
terms of its highest and best use which is categorized under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
The description of valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of
investment properties are classified as Level 3 in fair value hierarchy is as follows:
Valuation techniques
Sales comparison
approach

Significant unobservable inputs
Selling price (per square meter)
Size
Location
Neighborhood

Range
P13,000 - P48,000

Transport/Road network

Rental income on investment properties amounted to P346,847 and P283,725 in 2017 and
2016, respectively. No direct operating costs were incurred on these investment properties in
both 2017 and 2016.
Certain condominium units and parking lots were reclassified to Non-current assets held for
sale during the year. (see Note 9)
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14.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
This account consists of the following:

Trade
Capital gains tax payable
VAT output
Unearned rent income
Income tax payable

P

P

2017
456,933 P
1,990,000
85,714
26,786
1,104
2,560,537 P

2016
405,934
1,990,000
1,376
2,397,310

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities are as follows:
• Trade payables are non interest-bearing and are normally settled on a 90-day term;
• Unearned rent income represents advance rental payments on parking lot being leased out
to a third party.
• Income tax payable is the annual income tax to be paid to the taxing authority, it is payable
on or before the 15th day of the third month after the fiscal year end date.
The fair values of accounts payable and accrued expenses have not been disclosed due to
their short duration. Management considers the carrying amounts recognized in the statement
of financial position to be a reasonable approximation of their fair values.
During 2016, the Company recognized a capital gains tax payable on the sale of unlisted
shares amounting to P1,195,000. As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, capital gains tax payable
amounted to P1,990,000.

15.

Equity
Share capital
Component of share capital is as follows:
Authorized share capital
Title of issue
Number of shares
Amount
Common
Class A
4,200,000,000 P 420,000,000
Class B
2,800,000,000
280,000,000
Preferred
5,000,000,000
500,000,000
12,000,000,000 P 1,200,000,000

Subscribed and paid
Number of shares
Amount
3,700,000,000 P 370,000,000
800,000,000
80,000,000
4,500,000,000 P 450,000,000

In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation, certain restrictions have been imposed
regarding issuance and transfer of share capital as follows:
Class “A” common shares are to be issued only to citizens of the Philippines or to partnership,
association or corporation organized under the laws of the Philippines.
Class “B” common shares are to be issued to any person subject to the required foreign
ownership limitation under the laws of the Philippines.
Preferred shares are cumulative, non-participating, non-voting shares that are entitled for
mandatory redemption on the 5th, 7th and 10th year anniversary of issue.
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Unrealized gain on available-for-sale financial assets
The movement of this account is as follows:

Balance at beginning of year
Fair value changes transferred to profit or loss
Changes in fair value - net of deferred tax
Balance at the end of year

16.

P

P

2016
9,224,153
(873,551)
8,350,602

2017
8,350,602 P
(10,616,931)
61,978
(2,204,351) P

Administrative expenses
The breakdown of this account is as follows:

Taxes and licenses
Professional fees
Impairment loss on Non-current assets
held for sale (see Note 9)

P

Transportation and travel
Penalties
Office supplies
Impairment loss on AFS investment
Miscellaneous
P

2017
2,684,046 P
790,000
600,166
55,846
44,000
14,900
41,090
4,230,048

P

2016
207,826
755,000
60,000
8,670
31,540
31,800
1,094,836
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17.

Related party transactions
The Company’s related parties, relationship, nature of transactions and year-end
as follows:
Transaction
Amount
Year-end balances
Terms
Advances to related parties
Subsidiaries
Managed Care Philippines, Inc.
Payment of advances
2017
P (3,000,000) P
11,942,328 No payment
terms
2016
14,942,328 No payment
terms
Advanced Home Concept
Development Corporation
No transaction occurred
2017
P
P
10,768,677 No payment
during the year
terms
2016
10,768,677 No payment
terms
Related parties
Unipage Management, Inc. (UMI)
Payment of advances
2017
P (25,000,000) P
27,243,970 No payment
terms
Sale of AFS investment
No payment
19,908,826
(see Note 12)
terms

Cash advances

4,800,000

2016
Shareholders
2017

27,535,144

Advances

P 17,964,152

Payment of advances
ATN Philippines Solar Energy
Group Inc.
Advances
2017
Total advances to related parties
2017
2016

273,940

Conditions

Unsecured;
no impairment
Unsecured;
no impairment

Unsecured;
no impairment
Unsecured;
no impairment

Unsecured;
no impairment
Unsecured;
no impairment

No payment
terms
No payment
terms

Unsecured;
no impairment
Unsecured;
no impairment

P

964,152

No payment
terms
No payment
terms

Unsecured;
no impairment
Unsecured;
no impairment

P

273,940

No payment
terms

Unsecured;
no impairment

P

51,193,067
53,246,149

(17,000,000)

P

balances are
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Transaction
Advances from related parties
Subsidiary
Palladian Land Development, Inc.
Payment of advances
2017

Amount

P

Cash advances

2,555,960

Year-end balances

P

Payment of advances

P

35,848

P

2016
ATN Philippines Solar Energy
Group Inc.
Payment of advances
2017

(50,185,273)

No payment
terms

Unsecured;
no impairment

(25,741,233)

No payment
terms

Unsecured;
no impairment

No payment
terms
No payment
terms

Unsecured;
no impairment
Unsecured;
no impairment

No payment
terms
No payment
terms

Unsecured;
no impairment
Unsecured;
no impairment

(35,848)

P

257,310

P

2016
Total advances from related parties
2017
2016

Conditions

(27,000,000)

2016
Related parties
Shareholders
2017

Terms

(257,310)

P

(50,185,273)
(26,034,391)

Transactions with related parties during the 2017 and 2016 are as follows:
•
•
•

Advances to and from subsidiaries/affiliated companies are cash advances that are
primarily used for working capital of these companies.
During 2017 and 2016, UMI has net payment of advances amounting to P291,174 and
P17,787,508 million, respectively.
During 2017 and 2016, the Parent Company availed of cash advances from PLDI
amounting to P27 million and P25.7 million, respectively.

Advances to and from related parties are not subject to interest and has no fixed repayment
period.
Mariestad Mining Corporation (MMC) and Sierra Madre Consolidated Mines (SMCM)
In prior years, the Company made advances to SMCM to fund its mining activities. Such
advances will be converted into equity interest in SMCM when mining operations commence.
Due to unforeseen circumstances, SMCM encountered financial difficulties and were unable to
operate and generate revenues and cash flows. Accordingly, the Company provided a full
impairment loss on its advances to SMCM in 2014 amounting to P7.45 million.

18.

Income Taxes
Current income tax is computed under the minimum corporate income (MCIT). MCIT is
computed at 2% of gross income and can be claimed as tax credits for a period of 3 years,
whenever regular income tax is higher than the MCIT.
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The reconciliation of pretax income computed at the applicable statutory rates to tax expense is
as follows:

Statutory income tax
Income subject to final tax
Tax effect of:
Unrecognized difference on MCIT
Non-deductible expense
Non-taxable income

2017
2,048,132 P
(1,046)

2016
3,356,817
(151)

984,448
13,200
(3,218,261)
(173,527) P

230,006
9,540
(2,405,000)
1,191,212

P

P

The movements of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

As of March 31, 2017
Changes taken to
Beginning
Profit and loss
Equity
P 2,452,660 P
180,050 P
P
2,265,167
(99,178)
P
187,493 P
180,050 P
99,178 P

Ending
2,632,710
2,165,989
466,721

As of March 31, 2016
Changes taken to
Profit and loss
Equity
P
9,462 P
P
(4,547)
P
9,462 P
4,547 P

Ending
2,452,660
2,265,167
187,493

Beginning
2,443,198
2,269,714
P
173,484
P

The component of the Company’s deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as follows:

2017

Deferred tax assets
Unrealized loss on fair value adjustment of
investment properties
Unrealized loss on asset valuation of Non-current
assets held for sale
Impairment loss on financial asset
Deferred tax liabilities
Unrealized gain on:
Available-for-sale investments

P

P

2016

2,443,198 P

2,443,198

180,050
9,462
2,632,710

9,462
2,452,660

2,165,989 P

2,265,167

The Company did not recognize any deferred tax assets as at March 31, 2017 and 2016 on the
following items since it does not expect to have sufficient profit against which the deferred tax
assets can be utilized.

Allowance for impairment losses
Net Operating Loss Carry Over (NOLCO)
Minimum Corporate Income Tax (MCIT)

P

P

2017
4,335,000 P
1,457,901
17,199
5,810,100 P

2016
4,335,000
535,735
24,936
4,895,671
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Components of the Company’s unutilized NOLCO and MCIT and the year until which these are
deductible from taxable income are as follows:

Year incurred
2017
2016
2015

Original amounts
NOLCO
MCIT
P 3,259,749 P
6,523
747,771
5,675
852,151
5,001
P 4,859,671 P
17,199

Expiry
2020
2019
2018

NOLCO and MCIT amounting to P185,861 and P14,260, respectively, that were incurred in
2014, expired in 2017 without any benefit therefrom.

19.

Earnings per share
Earnings per share is computed by dividing the income for the year by the weighted average
number of common shares as follows:

Income for the year
Weighted average numbers of shares
outstanding during the year

P

P

2017
7,000,636 P

2016
9,998,179

4,500,000,000
4,500,000,000
0.0022
0.0016 P

As of March 31, 2017 and 2016, there were no potential ordinary shares with dilutive effect.

20.

Other Matters
Non cash investing and financing activities
Non-cash investing and financing activities that were excluded in the preparation of the
statements of cash flows are as follows:
•
•

Sale of an investment in AFS amounting to P19.9 million did not generate any cash
during the year but increase in advances to related parties only.
AFS investment was reduced by P61,978 and P873,550 due to change in fair value of
the investment during 2017 and 2016, respectively.

Reclassification
Certain investment properties amounting to P19,347,749 were reclassified to Non-current
assets held for sale during the year. Advance payments to these investment properties, lodged
under Deposits in 2016, were also reclassified to Non-current liabilities of non-current assets
held for sale to conform with the presentation disclosure prescribed by PFRS 5. Advance
payments amounted to P14,158,181 in 2017. Deposits in 2016 amounting to P13,502,535 were
not reclassified since PFRS 5 only allows prospective application.
Operating Lease Commitments
Certain investment properties of the Companies are leased out to third parties under the
operating lease agreement. The lease term is for the period of 1 year renewable at the option of
both parties.
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21.

Supplementary Information Required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 and 19-2011
The Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) issued Revenue Regulations 15-2010 and 19-2011
which require additional tax information to be disclosed in the Notes to Financial Statements.
The following information covering the fiscal year ended March 31, 2016 is presented in
compliance thereto.
(i) Supplementary information required under RR 15-2010
•

The taxable income declared in the Company’s Income Tax Return for 2017 amounted to
P346,847.

•

The VAT output tax declared amounted to P44,836.

•

The VAT input tax claimed is broken down as follows:

Beginning of the year
Domestic purchases of goods and services
during the year
Claimed against Output VAT
Total input claimed during the year

P

155,297

P

96,960
(44,836)
207,421

•

Expanded withholding tax in the total amount of P24,400 was paid during the fiscal year.

•

As of March 31, 2017, the Company has no pending tax cases within and outside the
administration of the BIR.

(ii) Supplementary information required under RR 19-2011
•

The revenue of the Company for the year came from rent income amounting to P346,847.

•

Details of the Company’s itemized deductions for the year are as follows:
Taxes and licenses
Professional fees
Transportation and travel
Office supplies
Miscellaneous

P

P

•

2,684,046
790,000
55,846
14,900
41,090
3,585,882

All other taxes, local and national, lodge under taxes and licenses account are as follows:

Local
Community tax
Mayor's permit
National
BIR Annual registration
SEC Extension of corporate life
PSE Registration fee

P

P

586
8,960
500
2,424,000
250,000
2,684,046

PALLADIAN LAND DEVELOPMENT, INC.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Share
Capital

Retained
Earnings

Totals

Balance at January 1, 2015

P

200,000,000

P

22,000,000

P

1,352,132,698

P

1,574,132,698

Profit for the period
Balance at December 31, 2015

P

200,000,000

P

22,000,000

P

222,221
1,352,354,919

P

222,221
1,574,354,919

Loss for the period
Balance at December 31, 2016

See Notes to Financial Statements

P
P22,000,000

(450,276)

P 1,351,904,643

P

(450,276)

P 1,573,904,643

PALLADIAN LAND DEVELOPMENT INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 and 2015
2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income before income tax
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash
provided by operation:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of intangibles
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain)
Provision for retirement
Interest income
Interest paid
Operating income before working capital changes
Decrease (increase) in current assets
Accounts receivables
Other current assets
Increase (decrease) in current liabilities
Accounts payable
Income taxes paid
Interest received

P

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Decrease (increase) in advances to related party
Increase (decrease) in payable to related party
Increase (decrease) in deposits
Decrease (increase) in property and equipment
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Debt Servicing
Principal
Interest
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH BEGINNING
CASH END OF THE PERIOD

See Notes to Financial Statements

P

(320,244)

2015

P

315,729

814,516
500,000
27,987
(8,081)
1,125,410
2,139,588

814,516
500,000
1,411,810
99,790
(4,034)
650,232
3,788,043

83,212
(796,738)

183,570
165,518

304,300
(138,428)
8,081
1,600,015

(661,566)
(538,731)
4,034
2,940,868

(34,749,072)
28,728,707
2,132,387
(457,618)
(4,345,596)

(9,933,210)
956,384
10,338,160
1,361,334

1,509,269
(1,125,410)
383,859
(2,361,722)
4,304,493

(1,274,063)
(650,232)
(1,924,295)
2,377,907
1,926,586

1,942,771

P

4,304,493

PALLADIAN LAND DEVELOPMENT INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
1.

Corporate Information
Palladian Land Development Inc. (“the Company”), a corporation duly organized and existing
under the laws of the Republic of the Philippines, was incorporated and registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on June 21, 1989, primarily to acquire by
purchase, lease, donation or otherwise, and to own, use, improve, develop, subdivide, sell,
mortgage, exchange, lease, develop and hold for investment or otherwise, real estate of all
kinds, whether improve, manage or otherwise dispose of buildings, houses, apartments and
other structures of whatever kind, together with their appurtenances.
The company’s registered office address is 2223 Marbella Bldg. Roxas Blvd. Pasay City.
The Financial statements were authorized for issue and approved by the Company’s board of
directors and March 24, 2017.

2.

Basis of Preparation and Presentation

Basis of Financial Statement Preparation and Presentation

The accompanying financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards on a historical cost basis, except for financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), available-for-sale financial assets (AFS) and
investment properties that have been measured at fair values.
The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is the Company’s functional
currency. All values represent absolute amounts except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance

The accompanying financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) issued by the Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards Council.
3.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied for all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.
Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial
position based on current/non-current classification. An asset is current when it is:
• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
• Expected to be realized within twelve months after the end of the reporting period; or
• Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or use to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.
A liability is current when:
• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period; or
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.
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The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term
highly liquid investments readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject
to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial Instruments
Date of Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the consolidated statements of
financial position of the Company when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Initial Recognition

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Except for
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL, the initial measurement of financial
instruments includes transaction costs.

Determination of Fair Value

The fair value for instruments traded in active market at the reporting date is based on their
quoted market price. For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair
value is determined by using appropriate techniques or comparison to similar instruments for
which market observable prices exists.
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the same instruments or based on a valuation
technique, the Group recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income unless it qualifies for recognition as
some other type of asset.

Classification of Financial Instruments

The Company classifies financial assets into the following categories, (i) At fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), (ii) Available-for-sale, (iii) Held-to-maturity and (iv) Loans and receivable.
The Company classifies its financial liabilities into financial liabilities at FVPL and other financial
liabilities. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired
or liabilities incurred and whether they are quoted in an active market. Management
determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting date.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company’s financial instruments are loans and
receivables, and other financial liabilities.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or
services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivables. Loans and receivables
are carried at amortized cost in the consolidated statement of financial position. Amortization
is determined using the effective interest method less any impairment losses. Amortized cost
is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are
integral parts of the effective interest rate.
Included under this category are the Company’s cash and receivables.
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Other Financial Liabilities

Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated as at FVPL are
classified as other financial liabilities where the substance of the contractual arrangement
results in the Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to
the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares. The components of issued
financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are accounted for
separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after deducting
from the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of the
liability component on the date of issue.
After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are integral parts of the effective interest
rate. Any effects of restatement of foreign currency-denominated liabilities are recognized in
the statements of comprehensive income.
Included under this category are accounts payable and accrued expenses, bank loans,
deposits, and advances from related parties.

Reclassification of Financial Assets

A financial asset is reclassified out of the FVPL category when the following conditions are met
(i) the financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near
term; and (ii) there is a rare situation.
A financial asset that is reclassified out of the FVPL category is reclassified at its fair value on
the date of reclassification. Any gain or loss already recognized in the consolidated statements
of income is not reversed. The fair value of the financial asset on the date of reclassification
becomes its new cost or amortized cost, as applicable.

Impairment
Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

(i) Assets carried at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or held-tomaturity investments carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The amount of the loss is recognized in the profit and loss accounts.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed.
Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss accounts, to
the extent that the carrying value of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed, does
not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognized.

(ii) Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that
is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a
derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity
instrument has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
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at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are
not reversed in subsequent periods.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets if any, are subject to impairment review at each end of the
reporting period. Impairment loss is recognized when there is objective evidence such as
significant financial difficulty of the issuer/obligor, significant or prolonged decline in market
prices and adverse economic indicators that the recoverable amount of an asset is below its
carrying amount.

Non-Financial Assets

The Company’s investment properties, property and equipment, investment in associates and
intangible asset are subject to impairment testing. All other individual assets or cash
generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). As a result, some assets are
tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset or cash-generating unit’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting market conditions less cost to sell and value in use, based on an internal
discounted cash flow evaluation. Impairment loss is charged pro-rata to the other assets in
the cash generating unit.
All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously
recognized may no longer exist and the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted to the
recoverable amount resulting in the reversal of the impairment loss.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments
Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial
assets) is derecognized where:
• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
• the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party;
• the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a)
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred the control of the asset.
Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in profit or loss.
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Real Estate Inventories

Real estate inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). Cost
includes the value of land plus expenditures necessary to complete the housing units. Net
realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less cost to
complete and sell the units. NRV is determined in a manner provided in Note 5.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, real estate inventories are carried at cost.

Other Current Assets

Other current assets include 5% withholding taxes on rental services which can be claimed
against company’s income tax, prepaid expenses and security deposits. Other current assets
are carried at original amounts.

Investment Properties

Investment properties consist of properties that are held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both and that is not occupied by the Group.
After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If this information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. These valuations are reviewed annually by the Group. Investment property that is
being redeveloped for continuing use as investment property or for which the market has
become less active continues to be measured at fair value.
Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of, or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from service and no future economic benefit is
expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in the consolidated statements of income in the year of retirement or
disposal.

Investment in Associates

The Company’s investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method. An
associate is an entity in which a company has significant influence. Under the equity method,
the investments in associates is initially recognized at cost and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognize the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee
after the date of acquisition. The investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee is
recognized in the investor’s profit or loss. Distributions received from an investee reduce the
carrying amount of the investment.
Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the equity method is discontinued and
the investment is accounted in accordance with PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
in value. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions,
improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for repairs and maintenance are
charged to expense as incurred. When assets are sold, retired or otherwise disposed of, their
cost and related accumulated depreciation and impairment losses are removed from the
accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in income for the period.
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:
No. of years
Office furniture and fixtures
10
Leasehold improvements
3-13 or lease term whichever is shorter
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An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
The residual values and estimated useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting period.
An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated statements of income in the
year the item is derecognized.

Intangible Asset

The Company’s portal and enterprise system is carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at
the end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.
Amortization is computed based on the aggregate predicted life of 15-20 years from the date
of launch.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payables are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or
supplied and have been invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier. Accounts payable are
non-interest bearing and are stated at their original invoice amount since the effect of
discounting is immaterial.
Accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied but
have not been paid, invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier, including amounts due to
employees.

Bank Loans

Bank loans are measured at their nominal values and subsequently recognized at amortized
costs less payments.

Deposits

Deposits represent security deposits from clients and reservation fees from real estate buyers.
The same will be applied to contract price when the buyer committed to purchase the unit.
Reservation fees are non-refundable should the buyer decided not to go through with the
acquisition of the property.

Payable to Related Parties

Payable to related parties are non-interest bearing borrowings. These are measured at their
original amounts and have no fixed repayment period.

Equity

Share capital is determined using the par value of shares that have been issued and fully paid.
Additional paid-in capital includes any premiums received on the initial issuance of share
capital. Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from
additional paid-in capital, net of any related income tax benefits.
Unrealized gain/loss on AFS financial assets pertains to mark-to-market valuation of availablefor-sale financial assets.
Retained earnings include all current and prior period results of operations as disclosed in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.
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Other Comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive income comprises items of income and expenses that are not recognized
in the profit or loss for the year in accordance with PFRS.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has no other comprehensive income.

Revenue and Cost Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured.
(i)
Interest – interest income from bank deposits is recognized as interest accrues taking
into account the effective yield on the related asset.
(ii) Profit from assets sold or exchanged – recognized when the title to the asset is
transferred to the buyer or if the collectability is reasonably assured. If collectability is not
reasonably assured, revenue is recognized only to the extent cash is received.
(iii)
Rental from operating leases - properties leased out under operating leases are
included in investment property in the consolidated statements of financial position. Lease
income is recognized over the term of the lease on a straight-line basis.
(iv) Sales of services – revenue are recognized upon rendering of services or completion of
services made.
(v)

Dividends - dividends are recognized in the period in which they are declared.

(vi)
Fair value gains on investment properties – fair value gains on investment properties
are recognized when the market value of the investment properties are higher than its
carrying value. Measurement of fair value is discussed in Note 6.
Cost and expenses are recognized in the consolidated statements of income upon utilization of
the assets or services or at the date they are incurred. Interest expense is reported on accrual
basis.
Service charges, fees and penalties are recognized on an accrual basis when the service has
been provided. Loan commitment fees for loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred
(together with related direct costs) and recognized as an adjustment to the effective interest
rate on the loan.

Retirement Benefit Cost

The Company accrues retirement expense based on the provision of the Retirement Pay Law
(R.A. 7641). The RA requires that employers with no formal retirement plan or agreement
providing for retirement benefits shall provide for retirement pay equivalent to at least 15 days
plus 1/12 of the 13th month pay and the cash equivalent of not more than five (5) days of
service incentive leave for employees who have rendered at least five (5) years of service and
have reach the age of 60 at the time of retirement. Annually, the Group assesses the
sufficiency of the recorded retirement liability. Any increase or decline thereto is adjusted in
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
Because of the undue cost or effort in measuring retirement benefit cost under defined benefit
plan using the projected unit credit method, the Group elected to measure its retirement
benefit obligation with respect to current employees with the following simplifications:
(a)
(b)
(c)
the

Ignored estimated future salary increases;
Ignored future service of current employees; and,
Ignored possible in-service mortality of current employees between March 31, 2016 and
date employees are expected to begin receiving post-employment benefits.
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Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are generally expense as incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized if they are
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Capitalization
of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in progress and
expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized until the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Income Taxes

Current tax liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authority.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that have been enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of reporting period.
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences at
the end of reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Under the balance sheet liability method, with certain exceptions, deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deferred tax asset is to be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled.
Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. Only changes in deferred
tax assets or liabilities that relate to a change in value of assets or liabilities that is charged
directly to equity are charged or credited directly to equity.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations

Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The
financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency at exchange rates
prevailing at the time of transaction. Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from
settlement of such transaction and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the
consolidated statements of income.
On January 15, 2016, the company entered into a hedging agreement for the foreign currency
denominated borrowing of Yen 52 million.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when present obligation will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the
outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or
constructive commitment that has resulted from past events, for example legal disputes for
onerous contract.
Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period,
including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Any
reimbursement expected to be received in the course of settlement of the present obligation is
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recognized, if virtually certain, as a separate asset at an amount not exceeding the balance
of the related provision. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligation
as a whole. In addition, long term provisions are discounted at their present values, where
time value of money is material.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the d financial statements. They are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Earnings (Loss) per share are determined by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the fiscal year.

Related Party Transactions and Relationships

Related party relationships exist when one party has the ability to control directly or indirectly
through one or more of the intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist
between and/or among the reporting entity and its key management personnel, directors or
its shareholders. Transactions between related parties are accounted for at arm’s length
prices or on terms similar to those offered to non-related entities in an economically
comparable market.
In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance
of the relationship and not merely the legal form.

Events after the Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s position at the
end of reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements when material.
4. Changes in Accounting Standards

New Accounting Standards and Amendments to Existing Standards Effective as of January 1,
2016
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except
for the adoption of the following amendments to PFRS effective beginning January 1, 2016.

Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements – Disclosure Initiative
The amendments are intended to assist entities in applying judgment when meeting the
presentation and disclosure requirements in PFRS. These clarify the following:
• That entities shall not reduce the understandability of their financial statements by either
obscuring material information with immaterial information or aggregating material items
that have different natures or functions;
• That specific line items in the Statements of Income and OCI and the Statements of
Financial Position may be disaggregated;
• That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the Notes to Financial
Statements;
• That the share of OCI of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity
method must be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and classified between
those items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
These amendments do not have any impact on the Company.
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Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets -

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization
The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible assets. The amendments
are effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early
adoption permitted. The amendment does not have any significant impact on the Company’s
financial position or performance.
Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 41, Agriculture - Bearer

Plants

The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the definition
of bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41. Instead, PAS 16 will apply. After
initial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cost (before
maturity) and either the cost model or revaluation model (after maturity). The amendments
also require that produce growing on bearer plants will remain in the scope of PAS 41
measured at fair value less costs to sell. For government grants related to bearer plants, PAS
20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance, will apply.
The amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments do not have any impact
to the Company as the Company does not have any bearer plants.
Amendments to PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements - Equity Method in Separate Financial

Statements

The amendments allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entities
already applying PFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate financial
statements will have to apply that change retrospectively. For first-time adopters of PFRS
electing to use the equity method in its separate financial statements, they will be required to
apply this method from the date of transition to PFRS. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. The
amendment does not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial position or
performance.
Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities, and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Investment
Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception.
These amendments clarify that the exemption in PFRS 10 from presenting consolidated
financial statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity,
when it measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value. They also clarify that only a subsidiary of
an investment entity that is not an investment entity itself and that provides support services
to the investment entity parent is consolidated. The amendments also allow an investor (that
is not an investment entity and has an investment entity associate or joint venture) to retain
the fair value measurement applied by the investment entity associate or joint venture to its
interests in subsidiaries when applying the equity method. These amendments are not
applicable to the consolidated financial statements. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These
amendments do not have any impact on the Company’s financial statements.
Amendments to PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint

Operations

The amendments to PFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an
interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business
must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting. The
amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured
on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control is
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retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specify that the
amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting
entity, are under common control of the same ultimate controlling party.
The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and
the acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption
permitted. The amendment does not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial
position or performance.
PFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts
PFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate
regulation, to continue applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory deferral
account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS. Entities that adopt PFRS 14 must
present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate line items in the statement of
comprehensive income. The standard requires disclosure of the nature of, and risks associated
with, the entity’s rate-regulation and the effects of that rate-regulation on its financial
statements. PFRS 14 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016.
This standard does not apply since the Company is not a first-time adopter of PFRS.
Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2016 and do not have any material impact to the Company’s
financial statements. They include:


PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in

Methods of Disposal

The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal
through sale to a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be
considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan.
There is, therefore, no interruption of the application of the requirements in PFRS 5.
The amendment also clarifies that changing the disposal method does not change the
date of classification.


PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Servicing Contracts
PFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a
transferred asset that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a
servicing contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a
financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against
the guidance in PFRS 7 in order to assess whether the disclosures are required. The
amendment is to be applied such that the assessment of which servicing contracts
constitute continuing involvement will need to be done retrospectively. However,
comparative disclosures are not required to be provided for any period beginning
before the annual period in which the entity first applies the amendments.



PFRS 7, Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial

Statements

This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on
offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed
interim financial report unless they provide a significant update to the information
reported in the most recent annual report.


PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Regional Market Issue Regarding Discount Rate
This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is
denominated, rather than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no
deep market for high quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates
must be used.
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PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting
Disclosure of Information ‘Elsewhere
in the Interim Financial Report’
The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim
disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by crossreference between the interim financial statements and wherever they are included
within the greater interim financial report (e.g., in the management commentary or risk
report).

New Accounting Standard, Amendments to Existing Standards and Interpretations Effective
Subsequent to December 31, 2016
The standards, amendments and interpretations which have been issued but not yet effective
as at December 31, 2016 are disclosed below. Except as otherwise indicated, the Company
does not expect the adoption of the applicable new and amended PFRS to have a significant
impact on its financial position or performance.

Effective 2017
Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows
The amendments to PAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains
or losses). On initial application of the amendments, entities are not required to provide
comparative information for preceding periods. They are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2017, with earlier application being permitted.
Amendments to PAS 12, Income taxes – Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized

Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources
of taxable profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity
should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit
may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.
Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application
of the amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may
be recognized in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as
appropriate), without allocating the change between opening retained earnings and other
components of equity. Entities applying this relief must disclose that fact. Early application of
the amendments is permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact on
the Company.

Effective 2018
Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property – Transfers of Investment Property
The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development, into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that
a change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in
management’s intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in
use. The amendments should be applied prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018.
Retrospective application is only permitted if that is possible without the use of hindsight. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Company.
Philippine IFRIC Interpretation 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
The interpretation clarifies that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of
the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognizes the nonmonetary asset or
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nonmonetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine a date of the transactions for
each payment or receipt of advance consideration. Entities may apply the interpretation on a
fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity may apply the interpretation prospectively to
all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially recognized on or after the
beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation or the
beginning of a prior reporting period presented as comparative information in the financial
statements of the reporting period in which the entity first applies the interpretation.
The Company does not expect the adoption of this interpretation to have any significant
impact on the financial statements.
Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment – Classification and Measurement of Share-

based Payment Transactions

The amendments are intended to clarify following:
•
•
•

Accounting for cash-settled share-based payment transactions that include a
performance condition;
Classification of share-based payment transactions with net settlement features; and
Accounting for modifications of share-based payment transactions from cash-settled
to equity settled

They are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. On adoption,
entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but
retrospective application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and other criteria are
met. Early application of the amendment is permitted.
Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts – Applying PFRS 9 ‘Financial Instrument’ with

PFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
instruments standard, before implementing the forthcoming insurance contracts standard.
They allow entities to choose between the overlay approach and the deferral approach to deal
with the transitional challenges. The overlay approach gives all entities that issue insurance
contracts the option to recognize in other comprehensive income, rather than profit or loss,
the volatility that could arise when PFRS 9 is applied before the new insurance contracts
standard is issued. On the other hand, the deferral approach gives entities whose activities are
predominantly connected with insurance an optional temporary exemption from applying PFRS
9 until the earlier of application of the forthcoming insurance contracts standard or January 1,
2021. The overlay approach and the deferral approach will only be available to an entity if it
has not previously applied PFRS 9. The amendments are not applicable to the Company since
there are no activities that are predominantly connected with insurance or issue insurance
contracts. They are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.
PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014)
PFRS 9 (2014) replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and
supersedes the previously published versions of PFRS 9 that introduced new classifications and
measurement requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting model (in 2013).
PFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial assets,
including a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment, guidance on own credit
risk on financial liabilities measured at fair value and supplements the new general hedge
accounting requirements published in 2013. PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge accounting
requirements that represent a major overhaul of hedge accounting and introduces significant
improvements by aligning the accounting more closely with risk management. The new
standard is to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1,
2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company is still assessing the potential impact on its
financial statements resulting from the application of PFRS 9.
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PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
PFRS 15 replaces PAS 11, Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue, IFRIC 13, Customer
Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 18, Transfer of Assets from Customers and SIC-31, Revenue Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. The new standard introduces a new
revenue recognition model for contracts with customers which specifies that revenue should
be recognized when (or as) a company transfers control of goods or services to a customer at
the amount to which the company expects to be entitled. Depending on whether certain
criteria are met, revenue is recognized over time, in a manner that best reflects the company’s
performance, or at a point in time, when control of the goods or services is transferred to the
customer. The standard does not apply to insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease
contracts, which fall in the scope of other PFRSs. It also does not apply if two companies in
the same line of business exchange nonmonetary assets to facilitate sales to other parties.
Furthermore, if a contract with a customer is partly in the scope of another IFRS, then the
guidance on separation and measurement contained in the other PFRS takes precedence.
The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with
early adoption permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans
to adopt the new standard on the required effective date.
Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2014-2016 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018 and will not have any material impact to the Company’s
financial statements. They include:


PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
The amendment deleted the short-term exemptions in paragraphs E3-E7 of PFRS 1,
because they have now served their intended purpose.



PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
The amendment clarified the scope of the standard by specifying that the disclosure
requirements in the standard, except for those in paragraphs B10-B16, apply to an
entity’s interests listed in paragraph 5 that are classified as held for sale, as held for
distribution or as discontinued operations in accordance with PFRS 5, Non-current

Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.



PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
The amendment clarified that the election to measure at fair value through profit or
loss an investment in associate or a joint venture that is held by an entity that is a
venture capital organization, or other qualifying entity, is available for each investment
in an associate or joint venture on an investment-by-investment basis, upon initial
recognition.

Effective 2019
PFRS 16, Leases
On January 13, 2016, the IASB issued its new standard, PFRS 16, Leases, which replaces PAS
17, the current leases standard, and the related Interpretations.
Under the new standard, lessees will no longer classify their leases as either operating lease or
finance leases in accordance with PAS 17. Rather, lessees will apply the single-asset model.
Under this model, lessees will recognize the assets and related liabilities for most leases on
their statement of financial position, and subsequently, will depreciate the lease assets and
recognize interest on the lease liabilities in their profit or loss. Leases with a term of 12
months or loss or for which the underlying asset is of low value are exempted from these
requirements.
The accounting by lessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward the
principles of lessor accounting under PAS 17. Lessors, however, will be required to disclose
more information in their financial statements, particularly on the risk exposure to residual
value.
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The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. Earlier
application is not permitted until the FRSC has adopted the new revenue recognition standard.
When adopting PFRS 16, an entity is permitted to use either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective application, with options to use certain transition reliefs.

Deferred
PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint

Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

These amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
PFRS 10 and those in PAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require that a full gain or loss is
recognized when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or
not). A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not
constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. These amendments are
originally effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. This mandatory
adoption date was later on deferred indefinitely pending the final outcome of the IASB’s
research project on International Accounting Standards 28. Adoption of these amendments
when they become effective will not have any impact on the financial statements.
5.

Summary of Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgments about varying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Although, these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may differ from these estimates.

(i) Judgments

The following judgments were applied which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Determination of functional currency

The Company has determined that its functional currency is the Philippine peso which is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.

Classification of financial assets

In classifying its financial assets, the Company follows the guidance of PAS 39. In making the
judgment, the Company evaluates its intention, marketability of the instrument and its ability
to hold the investments until maturity.

Estimating net realizable value of real estate inventories

The carrying value of real estate inventories is carried at lower of cost or net realizable value
(NRV). The estimates used in determining NRV is dependent on the recoverability of its cost
with reference to existing market prices, location or the recent market transactions. The
amount and timing of recorded cost for any period would differ if different estimates were
used.

Distinction between investment properties and owner-occupied properties

The Company determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. If an
insignificant portion is leased out under the operating lease, the property is treated as
property and equipment. If the property is not occupied and is held to earn, it is treated as
investment property.
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Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for use in the production or supply of services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions cannot be sold separately as of the end of reporting
period, the property is accounted for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is
held for use to the production or supply of services or for administrative purposes. Judgment
is applied in determining whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as investment property. The company considers each property separately in making its
judgment.

Operating leases – Company as lessor

The Company has entered into property leases on a portion of its investment property. The
Group has determined that it retains all significant risks and rewards of ownership of those
properties which are leased out on operating leases.
The Company’s rental income amounted to P8,131,095 in 2014, and P7,991,269 in 2013.

Provision and contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and contingencies.

(ii) Estimates

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation of uncertainty
at end of reporting period, that have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Estimation of allowance for impairment losses on receivables

The Company maintains allowance for impairment losses at a level considered adequate to
provide for potential uncollectible accounts. The level of allowance for impairment losses is
evaluated by management on the basis of factors affecting collectability of the receivables. In
addition, a review of the accounts designed to identify accounts to be provided with
allowance, is made on a continuing basis

Determination of fair value of assets and liabilities

The fair value of assets and liabilities were determined in a manner disclosed in Note 6.

Estimated useful lives of property and equipment
The Company reviews annually the estimated useful lives of property and equipment, based
on the period on which the assets are expected to be available for use. It is possible that
future results of operation could be materially affected by changes in these estimates. A
reduction in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment would increase recorded
depreciation and decrease the related asset account.
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, amounted
to P3.290 million and P3.647 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Estimating fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for similar properties and
other contracts. In the absence of such information, the Company determines the amount
within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgment, the Company
considers information from a variety of sources including:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

current prices in an active market for properties of different nature, condition or
location (or subject to different lease or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those
differences;
recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments to reflect
any changes in economic conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred at
those prices; and
appraisal of independent qualified appraisers.
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On March 2014, a reappraisal was made for part of the Group’s investment properties. The
appraisal resulted into an increment amounting to P674.575 million. The amount was reported
as “Unrealized gain on investment properties” in the statement of comprehensive income, net
of deferred income tax. For lots, raw land and condominium units, the value were arrived at
using the Sales Comparison Approach. This is a comparative approach to value that considers
the sales of similar substitute properties and related market data and establishes a value
estimate by processes involving comparison, listings and offerings. The value of improvements
was determined under the Cost approach. The approach is based on the reproduction cost of
the subject property, less depreciation, plus the value of the land to which an estimate of
entrepreneurial incentive is commonly added.
Investment properties amounted to P2.2 billion as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Impairment of investment in associates and advances to related parties

The Company assesses impairment on assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Several factors are
considered which could trigger that impairment has occurred. Though management believes
that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values reflected in the financial statements
are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may materially
affect the assessment of recoverable values and any resulting impairment loss could have
material adverse effect on the results of operations.
The net carrying value of Investment in and advances to related parties as of December 31,
2016 and 2015 is as follows:
2016
Gross carrying
amount
Advances to related parties
ATN Holdings, Inc.
Inc.
Unipage Mgt. Inc.

6.

P 51,205,335
878,715
1,730,899
P 53,814,949

2015
Gross carrying
amount

Net carrying
amount
P

P

51,205,335
878,715
1,730,899
52,084,050

Net carrying
amount

P

18,307,162
758,715

P

18,307,162
758,715

P

19,065,877

P

19,065,877

Fair Value Measurement
The fair value for instruments traded in active market at the reporting date is based on their
quoted market price. For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair
value is determined by using appropriate techniques or comparison to similar instruments for
which market observable price exists.
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other
observable current market transactions in the same instruments or based on a valuation
technique, the Company recognizes the difference between the transaction price and the fair
value in the consolidated statements of income unless it qualifies for recognition as some
other type of asset.
The Company measures fair value of assets and liabilities using the following fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
Level 1
Included in the Level 1 category are assets and liabilities that are measured in whole or in part
by reference to published quotes in an active market. An asset or liability is regarded as
quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
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Level 2
Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).
Level 3
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs).
The table below analyzes assets and liabilities measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period, by the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement
is categorized.
2016
Cash in bank
Accounts receivable
Other current assets
Advances to related parties
Investment properties
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses
Interest bearing liabilites
Payable to related parties
Deposits
2015
Cash in bank
Accounts receivable
Other current assets
Advances to related parties
Investment properties
Accounts payable and
accrued expenses
Interest bearing liabilites
Payable to related parties
Deposits

P

Level 1
1,942,771

Level 2

Level 3
P

148,057
2,136,353
53,814,949
2,207,722,563
(436,686)
(26,103,823)
(62,035,395)
(32,523,657)

P

Level 1
4,304,493

Level 2

Level 3
P

231,269
1,339,615
19,065,877
2,207,722,563
(132,386)
(21,259,054)
(33,306,688)
(30,391,270)

Total
1,942,771
148,057
2,136,353
53,814,949
2,207,722,563
(436,686)
(26,103,823)
(62,035,395)
(32,523,657)
Total
4,304,493
231,269
1,339,615
19,065,877
2,207,722,563
(132,386)
(21,259,054)
(33,306,688)
(30,391,270)

Fair values were determined as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents, receivables, other current assets, deposits and other financial
liabilities – the fair values are approximately the carrying amounts at initial recognition due to

•

short-term nature.
• Investment properties – fair value was based on appraiser’s report. It is estimated using
Sales Comparison Approach, which is based on sales and listings of comparable property
registered within the vicinity that considered factors such as locations, size and shape of the
properties.
7.

Financial Instruments, Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity or funding risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to
meet commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from either
the inability to sell financial assets quickly at their fair values; or counterparty failing on
repayment of a contractual obligation; or inability to generate cash inflows as anticipated.
Liquidity risk is a risk due to uncertain liquidity. An institution may suffer liquidity problem
when its credit rating falls. The Group is also exposed to liquidity risk if markets on which it
depends on are subject to loss of liquidity.
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The Company manages its liquidity profile to: a) ensure that adequate funding is available at
all times; b) meet commitments as they arise without incurring unnecessary costs; c) be able
to access funding when needed at the least possible cost, and d) maintain an adequate time
spread of financial maturities.
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at
December 31, 2015 and 2014 based on contractual undiscounted payments:

2016

Later than 1

Later than 1

Later than 1

Not later than

month & not

month & not

month & not

one month

later than 3 mos

later than 1 year

later than 5 year

Total

Accounts payable and
accrued expenses

P

436,686

P

436,686

Interest bearing liabilities

26,103,823

26,103,823

Payable to related parties

62,035,395

62,035,395

Deposits

32,523,657

32,523,657

2015

Later than 1

Later than 1

Later than 1

Not later than

month & not

month & not

month & not

one month

later than 3 mos

later than 1 year

later than 5 year

Total

Accounts payable and
accrued expenses

P

132,386

P

132,386

Interest bearing liabilities

21,259,054

21,259,054

Payable to related parties

33,306,688

33,306,688

Deposits

30,391,270

30,391,270

Credit Risk

Credit risk is risk due to uncertainty in a counterparty’s (also called an obligor) ability to meet
its obligation.
Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying amount of the
financial assets as shown on the face of the consolidated statements of financial position (or in
the detailed analysis provided in the notes to consolidated financial statements). Credit risk,
therefore, is only disclosed in circumstances where the maximum potential loss differs
significantly from the financial asset’s carrying amount.
The table below shows the gross maximum exposure to credit risk of the Company as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015. Net maximum exposure is the effect after considering the
collaterals and other credit enhancements.
Gross maximum exposure
2016
2015
1,942,771
P
4,304,493
148,057
231,269
53,814,949
19,065,877
55,905,777 P
23,601,639

P

Cash in bank
Accounts receivable
Advances to related parties

P

Credit quality of the Company’s assets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

2016
Cash in bank
Accounts receivable
Advances to related parties

Neither past due nor impaired
High
Standard
Grade
grade
P 1,942,771 P
148,057
P 1,942,771 P
148,057
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Past due
but not
impaired
P

P

53,814,949
53,814,949

Past due
and
impaired
P

P

-

Total
1,942,771
148,057
53,814,949
P 55,905,777
P

2015
Cash in bank
Accounts receivable
Advances to related parties

P

P

Neither past due nor impaired
High
Standard
Grade
grade
4,304,493 P
P
231,269
4,304,493.0 P
231,269.0 P

Past due
but not
impaired

Past due
and
impaired

P
19,065,877
19,065,877.0 P

-

P

P

Total
4,304,493
231,269
19,065,877
23,601,639

High grade cash in bank are short-term placements placed, invested, or deposited in banks
belonging to the top banks in the Philippines in terms of resources and profitability.
High grade accounts, other than cash and cash equivalents, are accounts considered to be of
high value. The counterparties have a very remote likelihood of default and have consistently
exhibited good paying habits.
Standard grade accounts are active accounts with propensity of deteriorating to mid-range
age buckets. These accounts are typically not impaired as the counterparties generally
respond to credit actions and update their payments accordingly.
The aging analysis of past due accounts which are unimpaired is as follows:
2016
Past due 31-60 days
Over 120 days

related parties
19,373,382
34,441,567
P
53,814,949

P

2015
Past due 31-60 days
Over 120 days

P
P

Advances to
related parties
6,863,716
12,202,161
19,065,877

Market Risk

The Company is not exposed to market risk with respects to financial instruments it does not
hold in equity securities.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency exposures primarily
with respect to the Yen and Dollar loans. Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions and recognized assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the
Company’s functional currency. Significant fluctuation in the exchange rates could significantly
affect the Company’s financial position.
The carrying amount of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary liabilities at
the reporting date is as follows:

Japanese Yen Loan
US Dollar Loan

2016
Peso
Foreign Currency
Equivalent
Equivalent
P 22,203,823 ¥
52,232,000
$
P 22,203,823
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P

2015
Peso
Foreign Currency
Equivalent
Equivalent
21,259,053 ¥
54,232,278
3,335,500 $
70,000
24,594,553

The table below details the Company’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the
functional currency of the Company against the relevant foreign currencies. The sensitivity
rate used in reporting foreign currency risk is 5% and it represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the period and in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes all of the
Company’s foreign currency denominated liabilities. A positive number below indicates an
increase in net income when the functional currency of the Company strengthens at 5%
against the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the net income
when the balances would be negative.
Effect on Income
before taxes

2016
Increase/Decrease in Peso to Japanese Yen Rate
+5%
-5%

+1.1 Million
-1.1 Million
Effect on Income
before taxes

2015
Increase/Decrease in Peso to US Dollar Rate
+5%
-5%

+.16 Million
-.16 Million

Increase/Decrease in Peso to Japanese Yen Rate
+5%
-5%

+1.0 Million
-1.0 Million

Interest Rate Risk

The primary source of the Company’s interest rates risk relates to debt instruments. The
interest rates on this liability are disclosed in Note 16.
An estimate of 100 basis points increase or decrease is used in reporting interest rate changes
on fair value of loans and represents management’s assessment of the reasonable possible
change in interest rates.

Price Risk

The Company is exposed to property price and property rentals risk and to market price
changes of financial assets through profit or loss.

Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximizing the return to shareholders through the optimization of the debt and equity
balance.
The Company sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Company manages the
capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the dividends paid to shareholders or issue new shares.
The capital structure of the Company consists of issued share capital and additional paid-in
capital.
The financial ratio at the year end, which is within the acceptable range of the Company, is as
follows:
Equity
Total assets
Ratio

P
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2016
1,573,904,643
2,276,517,758
0.69

P

2015
1,574,354,919
2,244,273,780
0.70

8.

Cash in banks
Cash in banks accounts generally earn interest at rates based on prevailing bank deposit
rates.

9.

Accounts Receivable
Total accounts receivable as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 is P148,057 and P231,269
respectively. These receivables are not subject to interest.
As of December 31, management believes that amounts are fully collectible and no
provision for doubtful accounts is necessary.

10.

Real Estate Inventories
Real estate inventories consist of residential lots stated at cost amounting to P1,462,500
in 2016 and 2015.
There was no sale of real estate inventory during the year.

11.

Other Current Assets
This account consist of:
P

Prepaid tax
Prepaid expenses

P

2016
1,555,557
580,796
2,136,353

P
P

2015
1,339,615
1,339,615

Prepaid taxes are portion of rental income withheld by various tenants. The same may be
applied against future income tax liabilities.
12.

Investment Properties
Investment properties consist of land, raw land, condominium units and townhouses,
details of which are broken down as follows:
2016
Cost
Balance at beginning of year
Disposal during the year

P

Unrealized gain on fair value
adjustment of investment properties

P

522,258,101
522,258,101
1,685,464,492
2,207,722,593

2015
P

P

522,258,101
522,258,101
1,685,464,462
2,207,722,563

On March 27, 2014, certain investment properties were re-appraised to properly reflect its
fair market value. The appraisal resulted to an increase in value of investment amounting
to P674.575 million. The increase in fair value is included in the statement of
comprehensive income, net of deferred income tax as “Unrealized gain on investment
properties”. Fair market value is determined in a manner described in Note 6.
Rental income on investment properties amounted to P7,892,415 and P8,332,207 in 2016
and 2015 respectively.
Certain investment properties were pledge to the bank to secure the Company’s financing
requirements (see Note 16).
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13.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment consists of:
2016
Kind of Property
Balance at beginning of year
Addition during the year
Balance at end of year

Leasehold
Improvements
P
7,963,628
457,618
P
8,421,246

Accumulated depreciation and amortizations
Balance at beginning of year
4,508,078
Depreciation for the year
778,711
Balance at end of year
5,286,789
Book value
P
3,134,457

2015
Kind of Property
Balance at beginning of year
Balance at end of year

P
P

Accumulated depreciation and amortizations
Balance at beginning of year
Depreciation for the year
Balance at end of year
Book value
P

14.

Leasehold
Improvements
7,963,628
7,963,628

3,729,367
778,711
4,508,078
3,455,550

P

P

930,139

P

Total
8,893,767
457,618
9,351,385

P

738,226
35,805
774,031
156,108

P

5,246,304
814,516
6,060,820
3,290,565

P
P

Office Furniture
and Fixtures
930,139
930,139

P
P

Total
8,893,767
8,893,767

P

702,421
35,805
738,226
191,913

P

4,431,788
814,516
5,246,304
3,647,463

Intangible Asset
Intangible asset represent the web-based portal of a subsidiary for the marketing of its
medical services to local and international clients.
The movement in intangible asset is as follows:
Cost
Accumulated amortization
Balance at beginning of year
Provisions
Balance at end of year
Net Book Value at end of the year

15.

Office Furniture
and Fixtures
P
930,139

P

2016
10,000,000

P

3,500,000
500,000
4,000,000
6,000,000

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
This account consists of the following:
P

Trade
Others

P

2016
339,929
96,757
436,686

P

2015
10,000,000

P

3,000,000
500,000
3,500,000
6,500,000

P
P

2015
120,623
11,763
132,386

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities are as follows:
• Trade payables are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled on a 90-day term;
• Accrued expenses are noninterest-bearing and have an average term of two (2)
months;
• Other current liabilities are noninterest-bearing and have a maximum term of six (6)
months.
The fair values of accounts payable and accrued expenses have not been disclosed due to
their short duration. Management considers the carrying amounts recognized in the
statement of financial position to be a reasonable approximation of their fair values.
16.

Interest bearing liabilities
Bank loans pertain to the outstanding balance of dollar and yen loans with Rizal
Commercial Banking Corporation and China Banking Corporation which are covered by
promissory notes. These loans are secured by a mortgage on certain investment property
with a fair value of P100,404,363.
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On 2016, the company paid its dollar loan and avail of a peso loan. The yen loan was
renewed for another 2 years payable up to 2018. Interest is payable monthly at the rates
specified by the bank. Interest on these loans at the end of reporting period ranges from
5% for peso loan 3% for yen loan per year.
The outstanding balances of this account as of December 31 are as follows:
P

Yen Loan
USD Loan
Peso loan
Less: current portion

P

2016
22,203,823
3,900,000
26,103,823
3,900,000
22,203,823

2015
21,259,054
3,335,500

P

P

24,594,554
3,335,500
21,259,054

Financing charges related to peso and foreign currency loans amounted to P1,125,410
and P650,232 in 2016 and 2015 respectively.
17.

Deposits
This account consists of the following:
P

Deposit on operating leases
Deposit on contract to sell

P

2015
5,008,827
25,382,444
30,391,271

P
P

2014
4,196,611
15,856,499
20,053,110

Deposit on operating leases is made in compliance with the existing leasing agreement
with lessor. The amount is refundable at the expiration of lease contracts.
Deposit on contract-to-sell is advance payments made by third parties for the purchase of
the company’s investment property discussed in Note 16. The contract to sell provides for
a down payment equivalent to 20.83% and balance is payable in 120 equal monthly
payments. Revenue on such sale will be recognized when the title to the property is
transferred or the collection of the unpaid balance is reasonably assured.
18.

Equity
Share capital
The company’s authorized, subscribed and paid-up capital consist of:
Authorized – P10 par value
Subscribed and paid-up

2016
No. of shares
20,000,000
20,000,000

Amount
P200,000,000
P200,000,000

2015
No. of shares
20,000,000
20,000,000

Amount
P200,000,000
P200,000,000

Premium on subscribed share capital
The company has no additional premium on share capital subscribed as of December 31,
2015 and December 31, 2014.
19.

Revenues
This account consist of rental income from investment property of P7.892 million as of
December 31, 2016 and P8.332 million as of December 31, 2015.

20.

Direct Costs
This account consist of real estate taxes paid during the year amounting to P970,998 and
P922,842 as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 respectively.
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21.

Operating expenses
The breakdown of this account is as follows:
P

Communication, dues and utilities
Depreciation and amortization
Salaries,wages and other benefits
Rental
Security services
Miscellaneous
Office supplies
Transportation and travel
Contractual services
Taxes and licenses
Provision for retirement
Professional fees
Representation and entertainment
Unrealized foreign exchange loss

22.

P

2016
1,750,812
1,314,516
1,119,939
558,756
533,958
225,628
224,876
150,685
126,408
82,320
27,987
12,354
6,128,239

P

P

2015
1,307,822
1,314,516
755,817
1,201,486
32,489
81,242
22,136
139,930
82,537
99,790
22,944
2,443
1,384,286
6,447,438

Related Party Transactions
The following related party transactions occurred during 2016 and 2015:
Transaction
Advances to related party
ATN Holdings Inc.
2016
Advances
Payment of advances
2015
Advanced Home Concept Dev. Corp.
2016
Advances
during the year
2015
Unipage Management Inc.
2016
Advances
2015
Total advances to related party
2016
2015
Advances from related parties
Transpacific Broadband Group Int'l., Inc.
2016
Payment of advances
Cash advance
2015
Managed Crae Phils. Inc.
2016
No transaction
occurred during the year
2015
Shareholders
2016
Payment of advances
Cash advance
2015

Amount
35,000,000
(2,101,828)

Year-end
balances
51,205,335

Terms

Conditions

no payment
terms

Unsecured
no impairment

no payment
terms

Unsecured
no impairment

no payment
terms

Unsecured
no impairment

no payment
terms
no payment
terms

Unsecured
no impairment
Unsecured
no impairment

no payment
terms
no payment

Unsecured
no impairment
Unsecured

no payment
terms
no payment
terms

Unsecured
no impairment
Unsecured
no impairment

18,307,162
120,000

878,715
758,715

1,730,899

1,730,899
53,814,949
19,065,877

(2,000,000)
2,953,174
-

1,863,657
910,483
73,538
73,538

(7,188,229)
34,963,763

Total advances to related party
2016
2015

60,098,200
32,322,667
62,035,395
33,306,688
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23.

Retirement Benefits
The Company provides for estimated retirement benefits costs required to be paid under
RA 7641 to qualifying employees. The cost of defined retirement benefits, including those
mandated under RA 7641 should be determined using the accrued benefits valuation
method or projected benefit valuation method. Both methods require an actuarial
valuation which the Group has not undertaken. Management believes, however, that the
effect on the financial statements of the difference between the retirement cost
determined under the current method used by the Group and an acceptable actuarial
valuation method is not significant.
The balance of retirement liability account as of December 31, 2016 and December 31,
2015 is P245,923 and P217,936 respectively..

24.

Income Taxes
Components of income tax reported in the statements of comprehensive income are as
follows:
P

Current
Deferred

P

2016
138,428 P
(8,396)
130,032 P

2015
538,731
(445,223)
93,508

The reconciliation of tax on pretax income computed at the applicable statutory rates to
tax expense is as follows:
P

Statutory income tax
Tax effect of:
Non-deductible expenses
Non-taxable income
Income subject to final tax
MCIT
Actual provision for income tax

2016
(96,073) P

8,396
(1,172)
(2,424)
138,428
138,428

2015
94,719

445,223
(1,210)
538,731

The component of the Company’s deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as follows:
2016
Unrealized gain on fair value adjustment
of investment properties
Unrealized loss on foreign exchange
Retirement liability

581,756,695
(415,286)
(73,777)
581,267,632

2015
581,756,695
(415,286)
(65,381)
581,276,028

The Company did not recognize any deferred tax assets as at December 31, 2015 and
2014 on net operating loss carry over (NOLCO) and minimum corporate income tax
(MCIT) since it does not expect to have sufficient profit against which the deferred tax
assets can be utilized:
25.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share
Earnings per share is computed by dividing the loss by the weighted average number of
common shares as follows:
P

Earnings (A)
Divided by:
Weighted Average Shares (B)
Earnings per share (A/B)

2016
(450,276) P
200,000,000
(0.00)

As of the respective year ends, there are no potentially convertible shares.
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2015
222,221
200,000,000
0.00

26.

Commitments and contingencies

Operating Lease Commitments

Certain investment properties of the Company are leased out to third parties under the
operating lease agreement. The lease term is for the period of 1 year renewable at the
option of both parties.
27.

Non cash investing and financing activities
Non-cash investing and financing activities that were excluded in the preparation of the
Statements of Cash Flows are as follows:

28.

Other Internal Revenue Matters
In compliance with the requirements se forth by RR 15-2010 hereunder are the
information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year:
a.

VAT Output taxes
Gross revenue subject to VAT
Zero rated sales - Peza Accredited

2016
728,420
6,070,167
1,822,247

2015
552,148
4,601,231
3,730,976

b.

VAT input taxes
Amount
Domestic purchased of goods and services

340,980
2,841,500

294,342
2,452,853

81,820
970,998

82,037
922,842

500

500

52,467
31,701
-

53,589
66,167
-

c.

d.

Other taxes, licenses and fees
Local
Business permit
Real estate taxes
National
Annual registration
Income tax arrears for 2011
Withholding taxes
Tax on compensation and benefits
Creditable withholding taxes
Final withholding taxes

Deficiency tax assessments and tax cases
The company has no existing deficiency tax assessments.
Supplementary information required under RR 19-2011
Details of direct costs for income tax purposes as follows:
Real estate tax

970,998

Details of operating expenses for income tax purposes as follows:
Communication, dues and utilities
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense
Salaries,wages and other benefits
Rental
Security services
Miscellaneous
Office supplies
Transportation and travel
Contractual services
Taxes and licenses
Professional fees

P

P
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1,750,812
1,314,516
1,125,410
1,119,939
558,756
533,958
225,628
224,876
150,685
126,408
82,320
12,354
7,225,662

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS
ADVANCED HOME CONCEPT DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
9F Summit One Tower, 530 Shaw Blvd.
Mandaluyong City

Opinion
I have audited the accompanying financial statements of ADVANCED HOME CONCEPT
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION which comprise the statements of financial position as at
December 31, 2016 and 2015 and the statements of comprehensive income, statements
of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including summary of significant accounting policies.
In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 and
its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion
I conducted my audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I am
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and I have
fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concerns, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concerns and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
My objective are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, I exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's
internal control.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonabless of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in
my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

ADVANCED HOME CONCEPT DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

Share
Capital
Balance at January 1, 2015

P

2,000,000

Net Loss
Balances at December 31, 2015

2,000,000

Net Loss
Balances at December 31, 2016

See notes to Financial Statements

P 2,000,000

Deficit
P

(6,792,291)

Totals
P

(4,792,291)

(86,003)

(86,003)

(6,878,294)
(114,243)

(4,878,294)
(114,243)

P (6,992,537)

P (4,992,537)

ADVANCED HOME CONCEPT DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Deficit
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash
provided by operating activities:
Increase/(Decrease) in accounts payable
Net cash provided by operations
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/(Decrease) in :
Payable to related party
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH END OF YEAR
See notes to Financial Statements

P

P

(114,243)

2015

P

(86,003)

(114,243)

(162,434)
(248,437)

120,000
5,757
64,596
70,353

252,934
4,497
60,099
64,596

P

ADVANCED HOME CONCEPT DEVELOPMENT CORP.
Notes to Financial Statement
December 31, 2016 and 2015
1.

Corporate Information
Advanced Home Concept Development Corporation (“the Company”), a corporation duly
organized and existing under the laws of the Republic of the Philippines, was incorporated
and registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on March 14, 1998,
primarily to acquire by purchase, lease, donation or otherwise, and to own, use, improve,
develop, subdivide, sell, mortgage, exchange, lease, develop and hold for investment or
otherwise, real estate of all kinds, whether improve, manage or otherwise dispose of
buildings, houses, apartments and other structures of whatever kind, together with their
appurtenances.
The company’s registered office address is 9F Summit One Tower, 530 Shaw Boulevard,
Mandaluyong City.
The accompanying financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with the
resolution by the Board of Directors (BOD) on March 24, 2017.
The board of directors is still empowered to make revisions on financial statements even
after the date of issue.

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a fair value
measurement. The financial statements are presented in Philippine Pesos, which is the
Company’s functional currency. All amounts are rounded to the nearest Philippine peso,
except when otherwise indicated.
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,
which contemplate the realization of assets and settlement of liabilities in the normal
course of business.
Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) issued by the Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards Council.

3.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.
Cash in bank
Cash in bank in current accounts earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates and
these are deposits held at call with banks. Cash equivalents if any may consist of shortterm, highly liquid debt instruments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
with original maturities of three months or less and that are subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value.
Trade Receivable
Trade receivables are stated at their nominal values as reduced by any appropriate
allowances for doubtful accounts. Any allowance for impairment loss and allowance for
doubtful accounts are the estimated amount of probable losses arising from non-collection
based on past collection experience and management’s review of the current status of the
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long-outstanding receivables. Any doubtful account expense is to be recognized in the
statement of income.
Financial Instruments
Date of Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the statements of financial
position of the Company when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
Initial Recognition
All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Except for
financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL, the initial measurement of financial
instruments includes transaction costs.
Determination of Fair Value
The fair value for instruments traded in active market at the reporting date is based on
their quoted market price. For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market,
the fair value is determined by using appropriate techniques or comparison to similar
instruments for which market observable prices exists.
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other
observable current market transactions in the same instruments or based on a valuation
technique, the Company recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair
value in the statements of income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of
asset.
Classification of Financial Instruments
The Company classifies financial assets into the following categories, (i) At fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL), (ii) Available-for-sale, (iii) Held-to-maturity and (iv) Loans
and receivable. The Company classifies its financial liabilities into financial liabilities at
FVPL and other financial liabilities. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
investments were acquired or liabilities incurred and whether they are quoted in an active
market. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition
and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates such designation at every reporting
date.
(i)
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at FVPL
Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVPL include financial assets and financial
liabilities held for trading and financial assets and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL.
A financial assets and financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if:
• It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or
• It is part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
• It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at
FVPL upon initial recognition if:
• Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistently that would otherwise arise; or
• The financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets that is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis.
• It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, there are no financial assets under this category.
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(ii)
Available-for-sale (AFS)
AFS are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated on this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. Subsequent to initial recognition, AFS assets are
carried at fair value in the statement of financial position. Changes in the fair value are
recognized directly in equity account as “Revaluation reserve on AFS financial assets”.
Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain
or loss previously recognized in equity is included in profit or loss for the period.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, there are no financial assets under this category.
(iii)
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Company provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivables.
After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are
integral parts of the effective interest rate.
Included under this category is the company’s cash in bank.
(iv)
Held-to-maturity (HTM)
HTM investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities wherein the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. After initial measurement, HTM assets are carried at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment in value. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are integral parts of the
effective interest rate. Any changes to the carrying amount of the investment are
recognized in statements of comprehensive income.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, there are no financial assets under this category.
(v)
Other Financial Liabilities
Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated as at FVPL are
classified as other financial liabilities where the substance of the contractual arrangement
results in the Company having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial
asset to the holder, or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares. The
components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements
are accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual
amount after deducting from the instrument as a whole the amount separately
determined as the fair value of the liability component on the date of issue.
After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that are integral parts of the
effective interest rate. Any effects of restatement of foreign currency-denominated
liabilities are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.
Included under this category are accounts payable and accrued expenses and long term
loans payable.
Reclassification of Financial Assets
A financial asset is reclassified out of the FVPL category when the following conditions are
met (i) the financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in
the near term; and (ii) there is a rare situation.
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A financial asset that is reclassified out of the FVPL category is reclassified at its fair value
on the date of reclassification. Any gain or loss already recognized in the statement of
income is not reversed. The fair value of the financial asset on the date of reclassification
becomes its new cost or amortized cost, as applicable.
Impairment
Financial Assets
The Company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
(i) Assets carried at amortized cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity investments carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The amount of the loss is recognized in the profit and
loss accounts.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed.
Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss
accounts, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortized cost at the reversal date.
(ii) Assets carried at cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity
instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably
measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such an unquoted equity instrument has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent
periods.
(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are subject to impairment review at each end of the
reporting period. Impairment loss is recognized when there is objective evidence such
as significant financial difficulty of the issuer/obligor, significant or prolonged decline
in market prices and adverse economic indicators that the recoverable amount of an
asset is below its carrying amount.
Non-Financial Assets
The Company’s property and equipment are subject to impairment testing. All other
individual assets’ or cash generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit
level.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset or cash-generating
unit’s carrying amount exceeds its carrying amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of fair value, reflecting market conditions less cost to sell and value in use, based on an
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internal discounted cash flow evaluation. Impairment loss is charged pro-rata to the other
assets in the cash generating unit.
All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously
recognized may no longer exist and the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted to the
recoverable amount resulting in the reversal of the impairment loss.
Derecognition of Financial Instruments
Financial Assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
financial assets) is derecognized where:
• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
• the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has
assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party.
• the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and
either (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred the control of the asset.
Where the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognized to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.
Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.
Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses are measured at amounts paid and subsequently recognized as expense
over which the prepayments apply.
Real Estate Inventory
Real estate inventory are accounted for as current assets. Initially, the lots are measured
at cost including transaction costs
Real estate inventory are derecognized when they have either been disposed of or when
permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected. Any gain and loss on
disposal is recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the year of disposal.
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment if any, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization, and any impairment in value.
The initial cost of property, plant and equipment consists of its purchase price, including
any directly attributable costs in bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the item has been put into operation,
such as repairs, maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally recognized as expense in
the period the costs are incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that
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the expenditures have improved the condition of the asset beyond the originally assessed
standard of performance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional cost of
property, plant and equipment. When assets are sold or retired, their costs and
accumulated depreciation, amortization and impairment losses, if any, are eliminated from
the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the statement
of operations of such period
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives except
for portal and enterprise system which is computed based on the aggregate predicted life
of 15-20 years from the date of launch.
The useful life of each of the property, plant and equipment is estimated based on the
period over which the asset is expected to be available for use. Such estimation is based
on a collective assessment of industry practice and experience with similar assets.
The assets' residual values, useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year-end.
An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the statement of
operations in the year the item is derecognized.
Investment properties
Investment properties consist of properties that are held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both and that is not occupied by the company.
After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If this information is not available, the Company uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are reviewed annually by the Group. Investment
property that is being redeveloped for continuing use as investment property or for which
the market has become less active continues to be measured at fair value.
Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of, or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognized in the statement of income in the year of
retirement or disposal.
Investment in Associate
An associate if any, is an entity in which the investor has a significant influence and which
is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.
Investment in associate is accounted for using the equity method of accounting and
initially recognized at cost, and is subsequently adjusted to reflect the investor’s share of
the net profit or loss of the associate.
Accounts Payable and accrued expenses
Accounts payables are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or
supplied and have been invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier. Trade payables are
non interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.
Accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied but
have not been paid, invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier, including amounts due
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to employees. It is necessary to estimate the amount or timing of accruals, however, the
uncertainty is generally much less than for provisions
Long-term loans
Long-term loans if any, are measured at their nominal values and subsequently
recognized at amortized costs less settlement payments.
Equity
Share capital is determined using the nominal value of shares that have been issued.
Any costs of acquiring Company’s own shares are shown as a deduction from equity
attributable to the Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued.
When such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of
directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, and
is included in equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders.
Deficit include all current and prior period results as disclosed in the statement of income.
Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income, if any are recognized as part of total comprehensive income,
outside of profit or loss, when they arise. Comprehensive income may represent some
gains and losses arising on translating the financial statements of a foreign corporation,
some actuarial gains and losses, and some changes in fair values of hedging instruments.
The Company has no comprehensive income for the periods ending December 31, 2016
and December 31, 2015.
Revenue and cost recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
(i) Interest – interest income from bank deposits is recognized as interest accrues taking
into account the effective yield on the related asset.
(ii) Profit from assets sold or exchanged – recognized when the title to the asset is
transferred to the buyer or if the collectability is reasonably assured. If collectability is
not reasonably assured, revenue is recognized only to the extent cash is received.
(iii) Rental from Operating Leases
Properties leased out under operating leases are included in investment property in
the statement of financial position. Lease income is recognized over the term of the
lease on a straight-line basis.
(iv) Dividends - Dividends are recognized in the period in which they are declared.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has no income from operation.
Operating expenses are recognized in the statement of income upon utilization of the
service or in the date they are incurred. Finance costs are reported on an accrual basis.
Income Taxes
Current tax liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authority. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that have
been enacted or substantially enacted as at the end of reporting period.
Deferred tax asset is recognized for all temporary differences that are expected to reduce
taxable profit in the future, and for the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax
credits. Deferred tax liability is recognized for all temporary differences that are expected
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to increase the taxable profit in the future. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using the tax rates and loss substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each end of reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be utilized.
Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax
expense in the statements of comprehensive income. Only changes in deferred tax assets
or liabilities that relate to a change in value of asset or liabilities are charged or credited
directly to equity.
Employee Benefits
(i)
Retirement Benefit Cost
The Company provides for estimated retirement benefits costs required to be paid under
RA 7641 to qualifying employees. The cost of defined retirement benefits, including those
mandated ender RA 7641 is determined using the accrued benefits valuation method or
projected benefit valuation method. Both methods require an actuarial valuation which the
Company has not undertaken. Management believes, however, that the effect on the
financial statements of the difference between the retirement cost determined under the
current method used by the Company and an acceptable actuarial valuation method is not
significant.
(ii)
Compensated absences
Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leaves days (including
holiday entitlement) remaining at reporting date. They are included as part of Accounts
payable and accrued expenses account at the undiscounted amount the Company expects
to pay as a result of the unused entitlement.
Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are generally expenses as incurred. Borrowing costs, including exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest cost, are capitalized if they are directly attributable to the
acquisition or construction of an qualifying asset. Capitalization of borrowing costs
commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in progress and expenditures and
borrowing costs are being incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized until the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognized.
For income tax reporting purposes, borrowing costs are treated as deductible expense in
the year such are incurred.
Leases
Properties leased out under operating leases are included in investment property in the
balance sheet. Lease income is recognized over the term of the lease on a straight-line
basis.
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments if any are recognized
as an expense in the statements of income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
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Related Party Transactions
Parties are considered related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. The related party transactions are recognized based on transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when present obligation will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the
outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or
constructive commitment that has resulted from past events, for example legal disputes
for onerous contract.
Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at end of reporting period,
including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Any
reimbursement expected to be received in the course of settlement of the present
obligation is recognized, if virtually certain, as a separate asset at an amount not
exceeding the balance of the related provision. Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligation as a whole. In addition, long term provisions are
discounted at their present values, where time value of money is material.
Provisions are reviewed at each end of reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.
In those cases, where the possible outflow of economic resources as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot
be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the financial statement.
Probable inflows of economic benefits that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an
asset are considered contingent asset, hence, are not recognized in the financial
statements.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed
unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Events after End of reporting period
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s position at
the end of reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements.
Post year-end events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when material.
Earnings (loss) Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing profit for the period by the weighted
average number of shares issued and outstanding during the year.
4.

Changes in Accounting Standards

New Accounting Standards and Amendments to Existing Standards Effective as of January
1, 2016

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year
except for the adoption of the following amendments to PFRS effective beginning January
1, 2016.
Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements – Disclosure Initiative
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The amendments are intended to assist entities in applying judgment when meeting the
presentation and disclosure requirements in PFRS. These clarify the following:
•
That entities shall not reduce the understandability of their financial statements by
either obscuring material information with immaterial information or aggregating material
items that have different natures or functions;
•
That specific line items in the Statements of Income and OCI and the Statements
of Financial Position may be disaggregated;
•
That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the Notes to
Financial Statements;
•
That the share of OCI of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the
equity method must be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and classified
between those items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
These amendments do not have any impact on the Company.
Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets -

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization
The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern
of economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is
part) rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a
result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and
equipment and may only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible
assets. The amendments are effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. The amendment does not have any
significant impact on the Company’s financial position or performance.
Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 41, Agriculture - Bearer

Plants
The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41. Instead, PAS 16
will apply. After initial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at
accumulated cost (before maturity) and either the cost model or revaluation model (after
maturity). The amendments also require that produce growing on bearer plants will
remain in the scope of PAS 41 measured at fair value less costs to sell. For government
grants related to bearer plants, PAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure
of Government Assistance, will apply. The amendments are retrospectively effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted.
These amendments do not have any impact to the Company as the Company does not
have any bearer plants.
Amendments to PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements - Equity Method in Separate

Financial Statements
The amendments allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entities
already applying PFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate
financial statements will have to apply that change retrospectively. For first-time adopters
of PFRS electing to use the equity method in its separate financial statements, they will be
required to apply this method from the date of transition to PFRS. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption
permitted. The amendment does not have any significant impact on the Company’s
financial position or performance.
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Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, PFRS 12, Disclosure of
Interests in Other Entities, and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception.
These amendments clarify that the exemption in PFRS 10 from presenting consolidated
financial statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity,
when it measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value. They also clarify that only a subsidiary
of an investment entity that is not an investment entity itself and that provides support
services to the investment entity parent is consolidated. The amendments also allow an
investor (that is not an investment entity and has an investment entity associate or joint
venture) to retain the fair value measurement applied by the investment entity associate
or joint venture to its interests in subsidiaries when applying the equity method. These
amendments are not applicable to the consolidated financial statements. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption
permitted. These amendments do not have any impact on the Company’s financial
statements.
Amendments to PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in

Joint Operations
The amendments to PFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of
an interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a
business must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting.
The amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not
remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while
joint control is retained. In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to
specify that the amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including
the reporting entity, are under common control of the same ultimate controlling party.
The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation
and the acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation and are
prospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with
early adoption permitted. The amendment does not have any significant impact on the
Company’s financial position or performance.
PFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts
PFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate
regulation, to continue applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory
deferral account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS. Entities that adopt PFRS 14
must present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate line items in the statement of
comprehensive income. The standard requires disclosure of the nature of, and risks
associated with, the entity’s rate-regulation and the effects of that rate-regulation on its
financial statements. PFRS 14 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2016. This standard does not apply since the Company is not a first-time adopter of
PFRS.
Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2016 and do not have any material impact to the
Company’s financial statements. They include:
PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes
in Methods of Disposal
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The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal
through sale to a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be
considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan.
There is, therefore, no interruption of the application of the requirements in PFRS 5. The
amendment also clarifies that changing the disposal method does not change the date of
classification.

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Servicing Contracts
PFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a
transferred asset that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a
servicing contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial
asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance
in PFRS 7 in order to assess whether the disclosures are required. The amendment is to
be applied such that the assessment of which servicing contracts constitute continuing
involvement will need to be done retrospectively. However, comparative disclosures are
not required to be provided for any period beginning before the annual period in which
the entity first applies the amendments.
PFRS 7, Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim
Financial Statements



This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting
of financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim
financial report unless they provide a significant update to the information reported in the
most recent annual report.

PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Regional Market Issue Regarding Discount Rate
This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is
denominated, rather than the country where the obligation is located. When there is no
deep market for high quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates
must be used.
PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of Information ‘Elsewhere in the
Interim Financial Report’



The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim
disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by crossreference between the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within
the greater interim financial report (e.g., in the management commentary or risk report).

New Accounting Standard, Amendments to Existing Standards and Interpretations
Effective Subsequent to December 31, 2016
The standards, amendments and interpretations which have been issued but not yet
effective as at December 31, 2016 are disclosed below. Except as otherwise indicated, the
Company does not expect the adoption of the applicable new and amended PFRS to have
a significant impact on its financial position or performance.

Effective 2017
Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows
The amendments to PAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign
exchange gains or losses). On initial application of the amendments, entities are not
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required to provide comparative information for preceding periods. They are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017, with earlier application being
permitted.
Amendments to PAS 12, Income taxes – Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized

Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the
sources of taxable profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that
deductible temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how
an entity should determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which
taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying
amount.
Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial
application of the amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest
comparative period may be recognized in opening retained earnings (or in another
component of equity, as appropriate), without allocating the change between opening
retained earnings and other components of equity. Entities applying this relief must
disclose that fact. Early application of the amendments is permitted. These amendments
are not expected to have any impact on the Company.

Effective 2018
Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property – Transfers of Investment Property
The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development, into, or out of investment property. The amendments state
that a change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in
management’s intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change
in use. The amendments should be applied prospectively to changes in use that occur on
or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendments. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after July
1, 2018. Retrospective application is only permitted if that is possible without the use of
hindsight. The amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Company.
Philippine IFRIC Interpretation 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance

Consideration

The interpretation clarifies that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of
a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date
of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognizes the nonmonetary asset
or nonmonetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance, then the entity must determine a date of the
transactions for each payment or receipt of advance consideration. Entities may apply the
interpretation on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively, an entity may apply the
interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its scope that are initially
recognized on or after the beginning of the reporting period in which the entity first
applies the interpretation or the beginning of a prior reporting period presented as
comparative information in the financial statements of the reporting period in which the
entity first applies the interpretation.
The Company does not expect the adoption of this interpretation to have any significant
impact on the financial statements.
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Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment – Classification and Measurement of Share-

based Payment Transactions

The amendments are intended to clarify following:
•
Accounting for cash-settled share-based payment transactions that include a
performance condition;
•
Classification of share-based payment transactions with net settlement features;
and
•
Accounting for modifications of share-based payment transactions from cashsettled to equity settled
They are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. On adoption,
entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but
retrospective application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and other criteria
are met. Early application of the amendment is permitted.
Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts – Applying PFRS 9 ‘Financial Instrument’

with PFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
instruments standard, before implementing the forthcoming insurance contracts standard.
They allow entities to choose between the overlay approach and the deferral approach to
deal with the transitional challenges. The overlay approach gives all entities that issue
insurance contracts the option to recognize in other comprehensive income, rather than
profit or loss, the volatility that could arise when PFRS 9 is applied before the new
insurance contracts standard is issued. On the other hand, the deferral approach gives
entities whose activities are predominantly connected with insurance an optional
temporary exemption from applying PFRS 9 until the earlier of application of the
forthcoming insurance contracts standard or January 1, 2021. The overlay approach and
the deferral approach will only be available to an entity if it has not previously applied
PFRS 9. The amendments are not applicable to the Company since there are no activities
that are predominantly connected with insurance or issue insurance contracts. They are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.
PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014)
PFRS 9 (2014) replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement,
and supersedes the previously published versions of PFRS 9 that introduced new
classifications and measurement requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge
accounting model (in 2013). PFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial assets, including a new expected credit loss model for
calculating impairment, guidance on own credit risk on financial liabilities measured at fair
value and supplements the new general hedge accounting requirements published in
2013. PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge accounting requirements that represent a major
overhaul of hedge accounting and introduces significant improvements by aligning the
accounting more closely with risk management. The new standard is to be applied
retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with early
adoption permitted. The Company is still assessing the potential impact on its financial
statements resulting from the application of PFRS 9.
PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
PFRS 15 replaces PAS 11, Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue, IFRIC 13, Customer
Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 18, Transfer of Assets from Customers and SIC-31, Revenue Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. The new standard introduces a new
revenue recognition model for contracts with customers which specifies that revenue
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should be recognized when (or as) a company transfers control of goods or services to a
customer at the amount to which the company expects to be entitled. Depending on
whether certain criteria are met, revenue is recognized over time, in a manner that best
reflects the company’s performance, or at a point in time, when control of the goods or
services is transferred to the customer. The standard does not apply to insurance
contracts, financial instruments or lease contracts, which fall in the scope of other PFRSs.
It also does not apply if two companies in the same line of business exchange
nonmonetary assets to facilitate sales to other parties. Furthermore, if a contract with a
customer is partly in the scope of another IFRS, then the guidance on separation and
measurement contained in the other PFRS takes precedence.
The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018,
with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15
and plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date.
Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2014-2016 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018 and will not have any material impact to the
Company’s financial statements. They include:

PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
The amendment deleted the short-term exemptions in paragraphs E3-E7 of PFRS 1,
because they have now served their intended purpose.

PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
The amendment clarified the scope of the standard by specifying that the disclosure
requirements in the standard, except for those in paragraphs B10-B16, apply to an entity’s
interests listed in paragraph 5 that are classified as held for sale, as held for distribution or
as discontinued operations in accordance with PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale

and Discontinued Operations.

PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
The amendment clarified that the election to measure at fair value through profit or loss
an investment in associate or a joint venture that is held by an entity that is a venture
capital organization, or other qualifying entity, is available for each investment in an
associate or joint venture on an investment-by-investment basis, upon initial recognition.

Effective 2019
PFRS 16, Leases
On January 13, 2016, the IASB issued its new standard, PFRS 16, Leases, which replaces
PAS 17, the current leases standard, and the related Interpretations.
Under the new standard, lessees will no longer classify their leases as either operating
lease or finance leases in accordance with PAS 17. Rather, lessees will apply the singleasset model. Under this model, lessees will recognize the assets and related liabilities for
most leases on their statement of financial position, and subsequently, will depreciate the
lease assets and recognize interest on the lease liabilities in their profit or loss. Leases
with a term of 12 months or loss or for which the underlying asset is of low value are
exempted from these requirements.
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The accounting by lessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward
the principles of lessor accounting under PAS 17. Lessors, however, will be required to
disclose more information in their financial statements, particularly on the risk exposure to
residual value.
The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.
Earlier application is not permitted until the FRSC has adopted the new revenue
recognition standard. When adopting PFRS 16, an entity is permitted to use either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective application, with options to use certain transition
reliefs.

Deferred
PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture
These amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in
PFRS 10 and those in PAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require that a full gain or loss
is recognized when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary
or not). A partial gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not
constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. These amendments
are originally effective from annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. This
mandatory adoption date was later on deferred indefinitely pending the final outcome of
the IASB’s research project on International Accounting Standards 28. Adoption of these
amendments when they become effective will not have any impact on the financial
statements.
5.

Management’s Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates
The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of the
assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
(i)
Judgments
The following judgments were applied which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements.
Determination of functional currency
The Company has determined that its functional currency is the Philippine peso which is
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates.
Classification of leases
Judgment is exercise in determining whether substantially all the significant risk and
rewards of ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the Company. Leases where the
lessor transfer all the risk and rewards incidental to the ownership of the leased asset are
taken up as finance leases. Leases where the lessor retains all the risk and rewards to
assets are taken up as operating leases.
Impairment of financial assets
The company follows the guidance of PAS 39 on determining when the investment is
other than temporarily impaired. This determination requires significant judgment. In
making this judgment, the Company evaluates, among other factors, the duration and
extent to which the fair value of investment is less than its cost; and the financial health
of and near-term business outlook for the investee, including factors such as industry and
sector performance, changes in technology and operational and financing cash flow.
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(ii)
Estimates
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation of
uncertainty at end of reporting period, that have significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below:
Determination of fair value of investment property
The Company has adopted the fair value model in determining the carrying value of its
investment properties. The Company has obtained the services of an independent
appraiser to determine the fair value of its investment properties, such fair value was
determined based on recent prices of similar properties with adjustment to reflect any
changes in economic conditions since the date of the transaction that occurred on those
prices.
Estimating Allowance for probable losses on receivables
The Company estimates the allowance for probable losses related to its trade receivable
based on assessment of specific accounts when the Company has information that certain
customers are unable to meet their financial obligation. In these cases, management uses
the best available facts and circumstances including but not limited to third party credit
reports and known market factors.
Estimated Useful Lives of Property and Equipment
The Company reviews annually the estimated useful lives of property and equipment,
based on the period on which the assets are expected to be available for use. It is
possible that future results of operation could be materially affected by changes in these
estimates. A reduction in the estimated useful lives of property and equipment would
increase recorded depreciation and decrease the related asset account.
The company has no property and equipment as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.
Deferred tax assets
The Company reviews the carrying amounts of deferred tax asset at each end of reporting
period and reduces the deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be
utilized.
Estimating Retirement Benefits
The determination of the Company’s obligation and cost for retirement and other
retirement benefits which is based on RA 7641 is dependent on the length of stay of the
qualifying employees and reaching the age of 60 upon retirement. Annually, retirement
benefits are computed based on existing employees and there is no assurance that the
employee will still be with the Company at the age of retirement.
Impairment of non-financial asset
The Company assesses impairment on assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.
Several factors are considered which could trigger that impairment has occurred. Though
management believes that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values reflected
in the financial statements are appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these
assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and any resulting
impairment loss could have material adverse effect on the results of operations.
6. Fair Value Measurement
The fair value for instruments traded in active market at the reporting date is based on
their quoted market price. For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market,
the fair value is determined by using appropriate techniques or comparison to similar
instruments for which market observable price exists.
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Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other
observable current market transactions in the same instruments or based on a valuation
technique, the Company recognizes the difference between the transaction price and the
fair value in the statements of income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other
type of asset.
The following table presents the summary of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities
recognized in the Statements of Financial Position as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.
Carrying
Value

2016
Fair
Value

Carrying
Value

2015
Fair
Value

P70,353

P70,353

P64,596

P64,596

P14,344,022

P14,344,022

P14,244,022

P14,224,022

2016
Financial assets
Cash in bank
Financial liabilities
Payable to related party

Due to short-term nature of transactions, fair values approximates the carrying amounts
at initial recognition.
7. Financial Risk Management
Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The main purpose of the Company’s principal financial instruments is to fund its
operational and capital expenditures. The Company’s risk management is coordinated and
in close operation with the Board of Directors, and focuses on actively securing the
Company’s short to medium term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to financial
markets.
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk and liquidity risk
The Company’s overall risk management program seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the financial performance of the Company.
The policies for managing specific risks are summarized below.
Management of Financial Risk
Governance Framework
The Company has established a risk management function with clear terms of reference
and with the responsibility for developing policies on market, credit, liquidity and
operational risk. It also supports the effective implementation of policies.
The policies define the Company’s identification of risk and its interpretation, limit
structure to ensure the appropriate quality and diversification of assets to the corporate
goals and specify reporting requirements.
Capital Management Framework
The Company’s risk management function has developed and implemented certain
minimum stress and scenario tests for identifying the risks to which the Company are
exposed, quantifying their impact on the volatility of economic capital. The results of these
tests, particularly, the anticipated impact on the realistic balance sheet and revenue
account, are reported to the Company’s risk management function. The risk management
function then considers the aggregate impact of the overall capital requirement revealed
by the stress testing to assess how much capital is needed to mitigate the risk of
insolvency to a selected remote level.
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Regulatory Framework
The operations of the Company are also subject to the regulatory requirements of SEC.
Such regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities but also impose
certain restrictive provisions.
Financial Risk
The Company is also exposed to financial risk through its financial assets and financial
liabilities. The most important components of these financial risks are credit risk, liquidity
risk and market risk.
Credit risk
The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the
2012 and 2011 balance sheet. The maximum exposure is shown gross, without taking
into account collateral and other credit enhancement.
Gross maximum exposure
2016
2015
Cash in bank
P70,353
P64,596
The Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The Company
has adopted stringent procedure in extending credit terms to customers and in monitoring
its credit risk.
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge and
obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.
The Company manages the level of credit risk it accepts through comprehensive credit risk
policy setting out assessment and determination of what constitutes credit risk for the
Company; setting up exposure limits by each counterparty or group of counterparties,
geographical and industry segments; guidelines on obtaining collateral and guarantees;
reporting of credit risk exposures and breaches to the monitoring authority; monitoring
compliance with credit risk policy and review of credit risk policy for pertinence and
changing environment.
Receivable balances if any,are being monitored on a regular basis to ensure timely
execution of necessary intervention efforts.
As of balance sheet date, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk.
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity or funding risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to
meet commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from
either the inability to sell financial assets quickly at their fair values; or counter party
failing on repayment of contractual obligation; or inability to generate cash inflows as
anticipated.
The Company monitors its cash flow position and overall liquidity position in assessing its
exposure to liquidity risk. The Company maintains a level of cash deemed sufficient to
finance operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows and a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of short-term debt and
advances from related parties.
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The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at
December 31, 2016 and 2015 based on contractual undiscounted payments.
2016
Payable to related
party
2015
Payable to related
party

On
demand

Due within
2 months

P-

P-

On demand

Due within
2 months

-

-

Due
between
2-3
months
PDue
between
2-3 months
P-

No definite
call

Total

14,344,022

P14,344,022

No definite
call
P14,224,022

Total
P14,224,022

Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of change in fair value of financial instruments from fluctuation in
foreign exchange rates (currency risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk) and market
prices (price risk), whether such change in price is caused by factors specific to the
individual instrument or its issuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.
Market risk is the risk to an institution’s financial condition from volatility in the price
movements of the assets contained in a portfolio. Market risk represents what the
Company would lose from price volatilities. Market risk can be measured as the potential
gain or loss in a position or portfolio that is associated with a price movement of a given
probability over a specified time horizon.
i.
Currency risk
Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognized assets
and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the company’s functional currency.
Significant fluctuations in the exchanges rates could significantly affect the Company’s
position.
ii.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Floating rate instruments expose the
Company to cash flow interest risk, whereas fixed interest rate instruments expose the
Company to fair value interest risk.
iii.
Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss from system failure, human error, fraud, or external
events. When controls fail to perform, operational risk can cause damage to reputation,
have legal or regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss. The Company cannot
expect to eliminate all operational risk but initiating a rigorous control framework and by
monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks.
Controls include effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorization and
reconciliation procedures, staff education, and assessment processes. Business risk such as
changes in environment, technology, and industry are monitored through the Company’s
strategic planning and budgeting processes.
Capital management
The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt
and equity balance.
The Company sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Company manages the
capital structure and adjusts it in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
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the Company may adjust the dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell
assets to reduce debt.
The capital structure of the Company consists of issued capital, and deficit.
During the year ended, the company had a net loss of P114 thousand and P2.3 million as
of December 31, 2016 and 2015 respectively. To address its financing requirements the
company will seek sale of investment properties but the outcome of these matters cannot
be predicted at this time.
The financial ratio at the year-end, which is within the acceptable range of the Company, is
as follows:
2016
2015
Equity
(P4,992,537) (P4,878,294)
Total Assets
9,351,485
9,345,728
Ratio
(0.52)
(0.52)
8.

Cash in bank
Cash in bank earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. There are no cash
equivalents as of the end of the period.

9.

Real estate inventories
This account consist of various residential lots available for sale. Real estate inventories
are carried at cost.

10.

Other Non-current assets
This account consist of VAI inputs of P81,088 as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.

11.

Investment Property
This account consist of residential condominium units. There was no addition resulting
from subsequent expenditures and no sale during the year.:
The cost and fair value of investment property are as follows:
2016
2015
Investment property, at cost
P5,829,170 P5,829,170
Accumulated net gain from fair
348,374
value adjustments
348,374
Investment property at fair value
P6,177,544 P6,177,544
Investment properties are stated at fair values, which have been determined based on the
latest valuation report. The valuation undertaken was based on an open market value,
supported by a market evidence in which assets could be exchanged between a
knowledgeable willing buyer and a knowledgeable willing seller in an arm’s length
transaction at the date of valuation.

12.

Payable to related parties
This account consist of the following:
2016
P

ATN Holdings, Inc.

10,768,677

2015
P

878,715

Palladian Land Dev. Inc.

758,715

2,696,630

Stockholders
P

14,344,022

10,768,677
2,696,630

P

14,224,022

Payable to related parties are non-interest bearing advances which consist of advances for
various expenses incurred and for meeting extra ordinary financial obligation. These
advances have no definite call period.
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13.

14.

Share Capital

The company’s authorized, subscribed and paid-up capital consist of:
2016
No. of
Amount
shares
Authorized-P100 par value
20,000
P2,000,000
Subscribed and paid-up
20,000
P2,000,000

2015
No. of
shares
20,000
20,000

P2,000,000
P2,000,000

Deficit
This account consist of:
2016
P

Balance, January 1

6,878,294

2015
P

114,243

Add: Net Loss for the period
P

15.

Amount

6,992,537

6,792,291
86,003

P

6,878,294

Related Party Transactions
(a) Development Agreement
On May 26, 2004, the Company entered into a development agreement with Palladian
Land Development, Inc. (PLDI).
Under the terms of the agreement, the company (AHCDC) shall facilitate and make
available for development by PLDI the property located at Pasig City. PLDI shall be
responsible for all development cost estimated at Twenty Five Million Pesos
(P25,000,000.00)
AHCDC will be allocated majority of the properties under Block One of PT-75382 and PLDI
will be allocated all the properties under Block Two an a portion of Block One of PT75382.
(b) Development Agreement
On May 26, 2004, the Company (AHCDC) entered into a development agreement with
ATN Holdings, Inc., its ultimate parent company.
Under the terms of the agreement AHCDC shall facilitate and make available for
development by ATN the property located at Pasig City. ATN shall be responsible for all
development cost estimated at Fifteen Million Pesos (P15,000,000.00), and all necessary
final design, specifications, government permits and the execution of construction works
in subject property.
AHCDC will be allocated the properties under PT-72580 and PT-72582 and with
corresponding condominium units as its share in the investment. ATN will be allocated
the property under PT-72584 with the corresponding condominium units as its share in
the investment.

16.

Revenues
The company has no revenue as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.

17.

Expenses
This account consist of:
2016
P

Real estate taxes

94,629

2015
P

19,614

Miscellaneous
P
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114,243

65,884
20,119

P

86,003

18.

Income Tax expense (benefit)
The company has no income tax due for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.
The Company did not recognize any deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2014 on
impairment losses and net loss carry over (NOLCO) since it does not expect to have
sufficient profit against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

19.

Earnings Per Share
The Company’s earnings per share for the period ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are
computed as follows:
2016
2015
Net loss for the year
P(114,243)
P(86,003)
Number of shares issued and outstanding
2,000,000
2,000,000
EARNINGS PER SHARE
n/a
n/a
The Company considers its equity contributed by shareholders as capital.
Amount
Share Capital
2,000,000
Total
2,000,000

20.

Other Internal Revenue Matters
In compliance with the requirements se forth by RR 15-2010 hereunder are the
information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year:
VAT Output tax
The company has no revenue, for the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015, thus there were no output taxes.

Other taxes and licenses
Local:
Real estate tax
National:
BIR annual registration
BIR - Others

2016

2015

P94,129

P65,384

500
P94,629

500
P65,834

Withholding taxes paid/accrued for the year:
There were no withholding taxes on compensation, creditable withholding taxes and
final withholding taxes during the year.
Deficiency tax assessments and tax cases
The company has no existing deficiency tax assessments as of December 31, 2016.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
Board of Directors and Stockholders
Managed Care Phil., Inc.
9F Summit One Tower, 530 Shaw Blvd.
Mandaluyong City

Opinion
I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Managed Care Phil., Inc.
which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2016 and 2015
and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and
statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including summary of significant accounting policies.
In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 and
its financial performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion
I conducted my audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I am
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and I have
fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concerns, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concerns and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

MANAGED CARE PHIL., INC.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

2016
Share Capital
Deficit
Deficit at beginning of year
Net income (loss) for the period
Deficit at end of year

P 25,000,000

P

(14,364,475)
(782,585)
(15,147,060)
P 9,852,940

See Notes to Financial Statements

2015
25,000,000
(16,404,366)
2,039,891
(14,364,475)
P

10,635,525

MANAGED CARE PHIL., INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income (loss) before income tax
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for pension liability
Interest income
Decrease (Increase) in:
Accounts receivable
Other current assets
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase (Decrease) in payable to related party
Decrease (Increase) in property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale investment
Interest received

P

(782,585)

2015
P

2,039,891

2,424,843
15,376
4,833

3,140,307
46,087
4,435

(3,709,607)
(94,548)

(1,095,533)
425,061

784,073
(1,357,615)

(175,721)
4,384,527

(3,903,396)
4,026,129
(4,833)
117,900

(6,712,692)
(1,645,536)
7,092,311
(4,435)
(1,270,352)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH END OF YEAR
See Notes to Financial Statements

(1,239,715)
5,467,974
P 4,228,259

3,114,175
2,353,799
P 5,467,974

MANAGED CARE PHIL., INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2016 and 2015
1.

Corporate Information
The company (Managed Care Phil., Inc.) was incorporated on April 7, 1998. Its primary purpose
is to establish, maintain, adopt, operate, manage and engage in the business of developing and
promoting prepaid medical, health maintenance and related services like clinics, laboratories,
pharmacies, research centers, hospitals and emergency facilities for the treatment, care and
relief of the sick, injured or otherwise infirm persons including indigent patients including the
care and treatment of maternity cases, with the aim of providing and offering to the public, a
comprehensive, systematic and prevention-oriented concept of medical and health maintenance
programs.
The Company’s office address is 9F Summit One Tower, 530 Shaw Boulevard, Mandaluyong City.
The accompanying financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with the
resolution by the Board of Directors on March 27, 2017.

2.

Basis of Preparation and Presentation
Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.
The financial statements are presented in Philippine Pesos, which is the Company’s functional
currency. All values represent absolute amount except as otherwise indicated.
These financial statements are prepared for the purpose of complying with the requirements of
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR).
Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
Council.

3.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These policies have been consistently applied for all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Current versus non-current classification

The company presents assets and liabilities in the statements of financial position based on
current/non-current classification. An asset is current when it is:
• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
• Expected to be realized within twelve months after the end of the reporting period; or
• Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or use to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The company classifies all other assets as non-current.
A liability is current when:
• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;
• It is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period; or
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.
1

The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term highly
liquid investments readily convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Financial Instruments
Date of Recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the consolidated statements of financial
position of the Group when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Initial Recognition

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value. Except for financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, the initial measurement of
financial instruments includes transaction costs.

Determination of Fair Value

The fair value for instruments traded in active market at the reporting date is based on their
quoted market price. For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair
value is determined by using appropriate techniques or comparison to similar instruments for
which market observable prices exists.
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the same instruments or based on a valuation
technique, the Group recognizes the difference between the transaction price and fair value in
the consolidated statements of income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of
asset.

Classification of Financial Instruments

The company classifies financial assets into the following categories, (i) At fair value through
profit or loss (FVPL), (ii) Available-for-sale, (iii) Held-to-maturity and (iv) Loans and receivable.
The company classifies its financial liabilities into financial liabilities at FVPL and other financial
liabilities. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired or
liabilities incurred and whether they are quoted in an active market. Management determines the
classification of its investments at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, reevaluates such designation at every reporting date.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the company’s financial instruments are of the nature of
AFS, loans and receivables, and other financial liabilities.

AFS financial assets

AFS are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated on this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. Subsequent to initial recognition, AFS assets are carried
at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial position. Changes in the fair value are
recognized directly in equity account as “Unrealized gain on AFS financial assets”. Where the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognized in equity is included in consolidated statement of income.
Included under this category are shares of stock of publicly listed companies.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or
services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivables. Loans and receivables
are carried at amortized cost in the consolidated statement of financial position. Amortization is
determined using the effective interest method less any impairment losses. Amortized cost is
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calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are
integral parts of the effective interest rate.
Included under this category are the Group’s cash and receivables.

Other Financial Liabilities

Issued financial instruments or their components, which are not designated as at FVPL are
classified as other financial liabilities where the substance of the contractual arrangement results
in the Group having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder,
or to satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares. The components of issued financial
instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are accounted for separately, with the
equity component being assigned the residual amount after deducting from the instrument as a
whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of the liability component on the date
of issue.
After initial measurement, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on the issue and fees that are integral parts of the effective interest rate.
Any effects of restatement of foreign currency-denominated liabilities are recognized in the
statements of comprehensive income.
Included under this category are accounts payable and accrued expenses, bank loans, deposits,
subscription payable and advances from related parties.

Reclassification of Financial Assets

A financial asset is reclassified out of the FVPL category when the following conditions are met
(i) the financial asset is no longer held for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near
term; and (ii) there is a rare situation.
A financial asset that is reclassified out of the FVPL category is reclassified at its fair value on the
date of reclassification. Any gain or loss already recognized in the consolidated statements of
income is not reversed. The fair value of the financial asset on the date of reclassification
becomes its new cost or amortized cost, as applicable.

Impairment
Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any objective evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

(i) Assets carried at amortized cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables or held-tomaturity investments carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The amount of the loss is recognized in the profit and loss accounts.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed.
Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the profit and loss accounts,
to the extent that the carrying value of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed,
does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognized.
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(ii) Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an unquoted equity instrument that
is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, or on a
derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted equity
instrument has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are
not reversed in subsequent periods.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are subject to impairment review at each end of the
reporting period. Impairment loss is recognized when there is objective evidence such as
significant financial difficulty of the issuer/obligor, significant or prolonged decline in market
prices and adverse economic indicators that the recoverable amount of an asset is below its
carrying amount.

Non-Financial Assets

The Company’s investment properties, property and equipment, investment in associates and
intangible asset are subject to impairment testing. All other individual assets or cash generating
units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.
For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset or cash-generating unit’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting market conditions less cost to sell and value in use, based on an internal
discounted cash flow evaluation. Impairment loss is charged pro-rata to the other assets in the
cash generating unit.
All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously
recognized may no longer exist and the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted to the
recoverable amount resulting in the reversal of the impairment loss.

Derecognition of Financial Instruments
Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of financial
assets) is derecognized where:
• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
• the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party;
• the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a)
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred the control of the asset.
Where the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the
form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.
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Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in profit or loss.

Other Current Assets

Other current assets include security deposits and prepaid expenses. Other current assets are
carried at original amounts.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in
value. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions,
improvements and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for repairs and maintenance are
charged to expense as incurred. When assets are sold, retired or otherwise disposed of, their
cost and related accumulated depreciation and impairment losses are removed from the
accounts and any resulting gain or loss is reflected in income for the period.
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:
Number of years
15
10
3-13 or lease term whichever is shorter
5

Medical equipment and fixtures
Office furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvements
Transportation equipment

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
The residual values and estimated useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting period.
An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated statements of income in the year
the item is derecognized.

Intangible Asset

The Group’s portal and enterprise system is carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the
end of each annual reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.
Amortization is computed based on the aggregate predicted life of 15-20 years from the date of
launch.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payables are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied
and have been invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier. Accounts payable are non-interest
bearing and are stated at their original invoice amount since the effect of discounting is
immaterial.
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Accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied but have
not been paid, invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier, including amounts due to
employees.

Payable to Related Parties

Payable to related parties are non-interest bearing borrowings. These are measured at their
original amounts and have no fixed repayment period.

Equity

Share capital is determined using the par value of shares that have been issued and fully paid.
Retained earnings include all current and prior period results of operations as disclosed in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Other Comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive income comprises items of income and expenses that are not recognized
in the profit or loss for the year in accordance with PFRS.
The company has no comprehensive income for the periods ending December 31, 2016 and
2015.

Revenue and Cost Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue can be reliably measured.
(i) Interest – interest income from bank deposits is recognized as interest accrues taking into
account the effective yield on the related asset.
(ii) Sales of services – revenue are recognized upon rendering of services or completion of
services made.
(iii) Dividends - dividends are recognized in the period in which they are declared.
Cost and expenses are recognized in the statements of income upon utilization of the assets or
services or at the date they are incurred. Interest expense is reported on accrual basis.

Retirement Benefit Cost

The company accrues retirement expense based on the provision of the Retirement Pay Law
(R.A. 7641). The RA requires that employers with no formal retirement plan or agreement
providing for retirement benefits shall provide for retirement pay equivalent to at least 15 days
plus 1/12 of the 13th month pay and the cash equivalent of not more than five (5) days of
service incentive leave for employees who have rendered at least five (5) years of service and
have reach the age of 60 at the time of retirement. Annually, the company assesses the
sufficiency of the recorded retirement liability. Any increase or decline thereto is adjusted in the
Statement of Financial Position.
Because of the undue cost or effort in measuring retirement benefit cost under defined benefit
plan using the projected unit credit method, the company elected to measure its retirement
benefit obligation with respect to current employees with the following simplifications:
(a) Ignored estimated future salary increases;
(b) Ignored future service of current employees; and,
(c) Ignored possible in-service mortality of current employees between December 31, 2016
and the date employees are expected to begin receiving post-employment benefits.
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Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs if any, are generally expense as incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized if they
are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Capitalization
of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in progress and
expenditures and borrowing costs are being incurred. Borrowing costs are capitalized until the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Income Taxes

Current tax liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authority. The
tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that have been enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of reporting period.
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences at the
end of reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
Under the balance sheet liability method, with certain exceptions, deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deferred tax asset is to be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled.
Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expense
in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. Only changes in deferred tax assets or
liabilities that relate to a change in value of assets or liabilities that is charged directly to equity
are charged or credited directly to equity.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the functional currency). The financial
statements are presented in Philippine Peso, the Group’s functional and presentation currency.
Foreign currency transactions if any, are translated into the functional currency at exchange
rates prevailing at the time of transaction. Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from
settlement of such transaction and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the consolidated
statements of income.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when present obligation will probably lead to an outflow of economic
resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the outflow may
still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or constructive
commitment that has resulted from past events, for example legal disputes for onerous contract.
Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation,
based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period, including the
risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Any reimbursement expected to
be received in the course of settlement of the present obligation is recognized, if virtually certain,
as a separate asset at an amount not exceeding the balance of the related provision. Where
there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
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settlement is determined by considering the class of obligation as a whole. In addition, long term
provisions are discounted at their present values, where time value of money is material.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the company has no foreign currency transactions and
translations.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Earnings (Loss) per share are determined by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the fiscal year.

Related Party Transactions and Relationships

Related party relationships exist when one party has the ability to control directly or indirectly
through one or more of the intermediaries, the other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions. Such relationships also exist
between and/or among the reporting entity and its key management personnel, directors or its
shareholders. Transactions between related parties are accounted for at arm’s length prices or
on terms similar to those offered to non-related entities in an economically comparable market.
In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of
the relationship and not merely the legal form.

Events after the Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group’s position at the end of
reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end
events that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when
material.
4.

Changes in Accounting Standards

New Accounting Standards and Amendments to Existing Standards Effective as of January 1,
2016
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except
for the adoption of the following amendments to PFRS effective beginning January 1, 2016.
Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements – Disclosure Initiative
The amendments are intended to assist entities in applying judgment when meeting the
presentation and disclosure requirements in PFRS. These clarify the following:
•
•
•
•

That entities shall not reduce the understandability of their financial statements by either
obscuring material information with immaterial information or aggregating material items
that have different natures or functions;
That specific line items in the Statements of Income and OCI and the Statements of
Financial Position may be disaggregated;
That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the Notes to Financial
Statements;
That the share of OCI of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity
method must be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and classified between those
items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
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These amendments do not have any impact on the Company.
Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets -

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization
The amendments clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. As a result, a
revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
only be used in very limited circumstances to amortize intangible assets. The amendments are
effective prospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early
adoption permitted. The amendment does not have any significant impact on the Company’s
financial position or performance.
Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 41, Agriculture - Bearer Plants
The amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the definition of
bearer plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41. Instead, PAS 16 will apply. After
initial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated cost (before
maturity) and either the cost model or revaluation model (after maturity). The amendments also
require that produce growing on bearer plants will remain in the scope of PAS 41 measured at
fair value less costs to sell. For government grants related to bearer plants, PAS 20, Accounting
for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance, will apply. The amendments
are retrospectively effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early
adoption permitted. These amendments do not have any impact to the Company as the
Company does not have any bearer plants.
Amendments to PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements - Equity Method in Separate Financial

Statements

The amendments allow entities to use the equity method to account for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements. Entities already
applying PFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate financial statements
will have to apply that change retrospectively. For first-time adopters of PFRS electing to use
the equity method in its separate financial statements, they will be required to apply this method
from the date of transition to PFRS. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. The amendment does not have any
significant impact on the Company’s financial position or performance.
Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities, and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - Investment Entities:
Applying the Consolidation Exception.
These amendments clarify that the exemption in PFRS 10 from presenting consolidated financial
statements applies to a parent entity that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, when it
measures all of its subsidiaries at fair value. They also clarify that only a subsidiary of an
investment entity that is not an investment entity itself and that provides support services to the
investment entity parent is consolidated. The amendments also allow an investor (that is not an
investment entity and has an investment entity associate or joint venture) to retain the fair value
measurement applied by the investment entity associate or joint venture to its interests in
subsidiaries when applying the equity method. These amendments are not applicable to the
consolidated financial statements. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments do not have any
impact on the Company’s financial statements.
Amendments to PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint

Operations

The amendments to PFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the acquisition of an
interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation constitutes a business
must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations accounting. The
amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on
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the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while joint control is retained.
In addition, a scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specify that the amendments do
not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity, are under
common control of the same ultimate controlling party.
The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively effective
for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. The
amendment does not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial position or
performance.
PFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounts
PFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose activities are subject to rate
regulation, to continue applying most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory deferral
account balances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS. Entities that adopt PFRS 14 must present
the regulatory deferral accounts as separate line items in the statement of comprehensive
income. The standard requires disclosure of the nature of, and risks associated with, the entity’s
rate-regulation and the effects of that rate-regulation on its financial statements. PFRS 14 is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. This standard does not apply
since the Company is not a first-time adopter of PFRS.
Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2016 and do not have any material impact to the Company’s financial
statements. They include:
PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in
Methods of Disposal



The amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing from a disposal through sale
to a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa should not be considered to be a new
plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original plan. There is, therefore, no
interruption of the application of the requirements in PFRS 5. The amendment also clarifies that
changing the disposal method does not change the date of classification.

PFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Servicing Contracts
PFRS 7 requires an entity to provide disclosures for any continuing involvement in a transferred
asset that is derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract that
includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset. An entity must assess
the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance in PFRS 7 in order to assess
whether the disclosures are required. The amendment is to be applied such that the assessment
of which servicing contracts constitute continuing involvement will need to be done
retrospectively. However, comparative disclosures are not required to be provided for any period
beginning before the annual period in which the entity first applies the amendments.


PFRS 7, Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial

Statements

This amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on offsetting of
financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim financial report
unless they provide a significant update to the information reported in the most recent annual
report.

PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Regional Market Issue Regarding Discount Rate
This amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality corporate
bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than the
country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high quality corporate
bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used.
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PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of Information ‘Elsewhere in the Interim

Financial Report’

The amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required interim disclosures must
either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between the
interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the greater interim financial
report (e.g., in the management commentary or risk report).

New Accounting Standard, Amendments to Existing Standards and Interpretations Effective
Subsequent to December 31, 2016

The standards, amendments and interpretations which have been issued but not yet effective as
at December 31, 2016 are disclosed below. Except as otherwise indicated, the Company does
not expect the adoption of the applicable new and amended PFRS to have a significant impact
on its financial position or performance.

Effective 2017
Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows
The amendments to PAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains or
losses). On initial application of the amendments, entities are not required to provide
comparative information for preceding periods. They are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2017, with earlier application being permitted.
Amendments to PAS 12, Income taxes – Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized

Losses

The amendments clarify that an entity needs to consider whether tax law restricts the sources of
taxable profits against which it may make deductions on the reversal of that deductible
temporary difference. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should
determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which taxable profit may
include the recovery of some assets for more than their carrying amount.
Entities are required to apply the amendments retrospectively. However, on initial application of
the amendments, the change in the opening equity of the earliest comparative period may be
recognized in opening retained earnings (or in another component of equity, as appropriate),
without allocating the change between opening retained earnings and other components of
equity. Entities applying this relief must disclose that fact. Early application of the amendments is
permitted. These amendments are not expected to have any impact on the Company.

Effective 2018
Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property – Transfers of Investment Property
The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development, into, or out of investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in use. A mere change in management’s intentions
for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments should
be applied prospectively to changes in use that occur on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendments. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018. Retrospective application is only permitted
if that is possible without the use of hindsight. The amendments are not expected to have any
impact on the Company.
Philippine IFRIC Interpretation 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
The interpretation clarifies that in determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition of a nonmonetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date of the
transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognizes the nonmonetary asset or
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nonmonetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, then the entity must determine a date of the transactions for each payment
or receipt of advance consideration. Entities may apply the interpretation on a fully retrospective
basis. Alternatively, an entity may apply the interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses
and income in its scope that are initially recognized on or after the beginning of the reporting
period in which the entity first applies the interpretation or the beginning of a prior reporting
period presented as comparative information in the financial statements of the reporting period
in which the entity first applies the interpretation.
The Company does not expect the adoption of this interpretation to have any significant impact
on the financial statements.
Amendments to PFRS 2, Share-based Payment – Classification and Measurement of Share-based

Payment Transactions

The amendments are intended to clarify following:
•
Accounting for cash-settled share-based payment transactions that include a
performance condition;
•
Classification of share-based payment transactions with net settlement features; and
•
Accounting for modifications of share-based payment transactions from cash-settled to
equity settled
They are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018. On adoption,
entities are required to apply the amendments without restating prior periods, but retrospective
application is permitted if elected for all three amendments and other criteria are met. Early
application of the amendment is permitted.
Amendments to PFRS 4, Insurance Contracts – Applying PFRS 9 ‘Financial Instrument’ with PFRS

4 ‘Insurance Contracts’

The amendments address concerns arising from implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
instruments standard, before implementing the forthcoming insurance contracts standard. They
allow entities to choose between the overlay approach and the deferral approach to deal with
the transitional challenges. The overlay approach gives all entities that issue insurance contracts
the option to recognize in other comprehensive income, rather than profit or loss, the volatility
that could arise when PFRS 9 is applied before the new insurance contracts standard is issued.
On the other hand, the deferral approach gives entities whose activities are predominantly
connected with insurance an optional temporary exemption from applying PFRS 9 until the
earlier of application of the forthcoming insurance contracts standard or January 1, 2021. The
overlay approach and the deferral approach will only be available to an entity if it has not
previously applied PFRS 9. The amendments are not applicable to the Company since there are
no activities that are predominantly connected with insurance or issue insurance contracts. They
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018.
PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014)
PFRS 9 (2014) replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and
supersedes the previously published versions of PFRS 9 that introduced new classifications and
measurement requirements (in 2009 and 2010) and a new hedge accounting model (in 2013).
PFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial assets,
including a new expected credit loss model for calculating impairment, guidance on own credit
risk on financial liabilities measured at fair value and supplements the new general hedge
accounting requirements published in 2013. PFRS 9 incorporates new hedge accounting
requirements that represent a major overhaul of hedge accounting and introduces significant
improvements by aligning the accounting more closely with risk management. The new standard
is to be applied retrospectively for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with
early adoption permitted. The Company is still assessing the potential impact on its financial
statements resulting from the application of PFRS 9.
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PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
PFRS 15 replaces PAS 11, Construction Contracts, PAS 18, Revenue, IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty
Programmes, IFRIC 18, Transfer of Assets from Customers and SIC-31, Revenue - Barter
Transactions Involving Advertising Services. The new standard introduces a new revenue
recognition model for contracts with customers which specifies that revenue should be
recognized when (or as) a company transfers control of goods or services to a customer at the
amount to which the company expects to be entitled. Depending on whether certain criteria are
met, revenue is recognized over time, in a manner that best reflects the company’s performance,
or at a point in time, when control of the goods or services is transferred to the customer. The
standard does not apply to insurance contracts, financial instruments or lease contracts, which
fall in the scope of other PFRSs. It also does not apply if two companies in the same line of
business exchange nonmonetary assets to facilitate sales to other parties. Furthermore, if a
contract with a customer is partly in the scope of another IFRS, then the guidance on separation
and measurement contained in the other PFRS takes precedence.
The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, with
early adoption permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans to
adopt the new standard on the required effective date.
Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2014-2016 cycle)
The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012-2014 cycle) are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2018 and will not have any material impact to the Company’s financial
statements. They include:

PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
The amendment deleted the short-term exemptions in paragraphs E3-E7 of PFRS 1, because
they have now served their intended purpose.

PFRS 12, Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
The amendment clarified the scope of the standard by specifying that the disclosure
requirements in the standard, except for those in paragraphs B10-B16, apply to an entity’s
interests listed in paragraph 5 that are classified as held for sale, as held for distribution or as
discontinued operations in accordance with PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and

Discontinued Operations.


PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
The amendment clarified that the election to measure at fair value through profit or loss an
investment in associate or a joint venture that is held by an entity that is a venture capital
organization, or other qualifying entity, is available for each investment in an associate or joint
venture on an investment-by-investment basis, upon initial recognition.

Effective 2019
PFRS 16, Leases
On January 13, 2016, the IASB issued its new standard, PFRS 16, Leases, which replaces PAS
17, the current leases standard, and the related Interpretations.
Under the new standard, lessees will no longer classify their leases as either operating lease or
finance leases in accordance with PAS 17. Rather, lessees will apply the single-asset model.
Under this model, lessees will recognize the assets and related liabilities for most leases on their
statement of financial position, and subsequently, will depreciate the lease assets and recognize
interest on the lease liabilities in their profit or loss. Leases with a term of 12 months or loss or
for which the underlying asset is of low value are exempted from these requirements.
The accounting by lessors is substantially unchanged as the new standard carries forward the
principles of lessor accounting under PAS 17. Lessors, however, will be required to disclose more
information in their financial statements, particularly on the risk exposure to residual value.
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The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019. Earlier
application is not permitted until the FRSC has adopted the new revenue recognition standard.
When adopting PFRS 16, an entity is permitted to use either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective application, with options to use certain transition reliefs.

Deferred
PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint

Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

These amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in PFRS
10 and those in PAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require that a full gain or loss is recognized
when a transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial
gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business,
even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. These amendments are originally effective from
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. This mandatory adoption date was later
on deferred indefinitely pending the final outcome of the IASB’s research project on International
Accounting Standards 28. Adoption of these amendments when they become effective will not
have any impact on the financial statements.
5.

Management’s Significant Accounting Judgments and Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about
varying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Although, these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results may differ from these estimates.

(i) Judgments

The following judgments were applied which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the financial statements.

Determination of functional currency

The company has determined that its functional currency is the Philippine peso which is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates.

Classification of financial assets

In classifying its financial assets, the company follows the guidance of PFRS 9. In making the
judgment, the company evaluates its intention, marketability of the instrument and its ability to
hold the investments until maturity.

Provision and contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and contingencies.

(ii) Estimates

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation of uncertainty at
end of reporting period, that have significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Determination of fair value of assets and liabilities

The Company measures fair value of financial instruments using the following fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. Fair
value determination is discussed below.
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Level 1
Included in the Level 1 category are assets and liabilities that are measured in whole or in
part by reference to published quotes in an active market. An asset or liability is regarded as
quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
Level 2
Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).
Level 3
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs).

Estimation of allowance for impairment losses on receivables

The company maintains allowance for impairment losses at a level considered adequate to
provide for potential uncollectible accounts. The level of allowance for impairment losses is
evaluated by management on the basis of factors affecting collectability of the receivables. In
addition, a review of the accounts designed to identify accounts to be provided with allowance,
is made on a continuing basis.

Determination of fair value of assets and liabilities

The fair value of assets and liabilities were determined in a manner disclosed in Note 6.

Estimated useful lives of property and equipment

The company reviews annually the estimated useful lives of property and equipment, based on
the period on which the assets are expected to be available for use. It is possible that future
results of operation could be materially affected by changes in these estimates. A reduction in
the estimated useful lives of property and equipment would increase recorded depreciation and
decrease the related asset account.
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, amounted to
P16 million and P22 million as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
6.

Fair Value Measurement
The fair value for instruments traded in active market at the reporting date is based on their
quoted market price. For all other financial instruments not listed in an active market, the fair
value is determined by using appropriate techniques or comparison to similar instruments for
which market observable price exists.
Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different from the fair value of other
observable current market transactions in the same instruments or based on a valuation
technique, the Group recognizes the difference between the transaction price and the fair value
in the consolidated statements of income unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of
asset.
The company measures fair value of assets and liabilities using the following fair value hierarchy
that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
The table below analyzes assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period, by the level in
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized.
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2016

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

Cash

4,228,259

-

-

4,228,259

Receivables

5,311,908

Other current assets
Advances to related party

193,348

73,538

73,538

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Payable to related party

(1,643,810)

(1,643,810)

(14,706,240)

2015
Cash

5,311,908

193,348

P

(14,706,240)

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

5,467,974

-

-

Trade receivable

1,602,301

Total
P

5,467,974
1,602,301

Other current assets

98,800

98,800

Advances to related party

73,538

73,538

Accounts payable and
accrued expenses
Payable to related party

(782,644)
(18,609,636)

(782,644)
(18,609,636)

Due to the nature of these financial instruments, their fair values approximate the carrying
amounts as of balance sheet date.
7.

Financial Instruments, Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are liquidity risk, credit risk, and
market risk. Risk management policies are summarized below.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity or funding risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from either the
inability to sell financial assets quickly at their fair values; or counterparty failing on repayment
of a contractual obligation; or inability to generate cash inflows as anticipated.
Liquidity risk is a risk due to uncertain liquidity. An institution may suffer liquidity problem when
its credit rating falls. The Group is also exposed to liquidity risk if markets on which it depends
on are subject to loss of liquidity.
The Company manages its liquidity profile to: a) ensure that adequate funding is available at all
times; b) meet commitments as they arise without incurring unnecessary costs; c) be able to
access funding when needed at the least possible cost, and d) maintain an adequate time spread
of financial maturities.
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities at
December 31, 2016 and 2015 based on contractual undiscounted payments:
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Later than 1

Later than 1

Later than 1

Not later than

month & not

month & not

month & not

one month

later than 3 mos

later than 1 year

later than 5 year

2016

Total

Accounts payable and accrued
expenses

P

1,643,810

P

Payable to related party

1,643,810

14,706,240
P

1,643,810

-

-

Later than 1

P

Later than 1

14,706,240

P

16,350,050

Later than 1

Not later than

month & not

month & not

month & not

one month

later than 3 mos

later than 1 y ear

later than 5 y ear

2015

14,706,240

Total

Accounts pay able and accrued
ex penses

P

782,644

P

Pay able to related party

1,035,458

18,609,636
P

782,644

-

-

P

18,609,636

18,609,636

P

19,645,094

Credit risk
Credit risk is risk due to uncertainty in a counterparty’s (also called an obligor) ability to meet its
obligation.
Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying amount of the
financial assets as shown on the face of the consolidated statements of financial position (or in
the detailed analysis provided in the notes to consolidated financial statements). Credit risk,
therefore, is only disclosed in circumstances where the maximum potential loss differs
significantly from the financial asset’s carrying amount.
The table below shows the gross maximum exposure to credit risk of the company as of
December 31, 2016 and 2015. Net maximum exposure is the effect after considering collaterals
and other credit enhancements.
Gross maximum exposure
2016
Cash in bank
Receivables

2015

P4,228,259

P 5,467,974

5,311,908

1,602,301

73,538

73,538

P9,613,705

P 7,143,813

Advances to related party

Credit quality of the Company’s assets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:
Neither past due nor impaired

2016
Cash in bank

P

Past due

High

Standard

but not

and

Grade

grade

impaired

impaired

4,228,259

-

Accounts receivable

-

Advances to related party

-

-

4,228,259 P

5,311,908 P

P

Past due

5,311,908
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Total

-

-

-

-

5,311,908

73,538

-

73,538

73,538 P

-

P

P

4,228,259

9,613,705

Neither past due nor impaired

2015
Cash in bank

P

Past due

Past due
and

High

Standard

but not

Grade

grade

impaired

5,467,974

-

impaired

Total

-

-

P

5,467,974

Accounts receivable

-

1,602,301

-

-

1,602,301

Advances to related party

-

73,538

-

-

73,538

1,675,839

-

-

P

5,467,974

P

P

7,143,813

High grade cash in bank are short-term placements placed, invested, or deposited in banks
belonging to the top banks in the Philippines in terms of resources and profitability.
High grade accounts, other than cash and cash equivalents, are accounts considered to be of
high value. The counterparties have a very remote likelihood of default and have consistently
exhibited good paying habits.
Standard grade accounts are active accounts with propensity of deteriorating to mid-range age
buckets. These accounts are typically not impaired as the counterparties generally respond to
credit actions and update their payments accordingly.
Market Risk
Market risk is the risk of change in fair value of financial instruments from fluctuation in foreign
exchange rates (currency risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk) and market prices (price
risk), whether such change in price is caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or
its issuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.
Market risk is the risk to an institution’s financial condition from volatility in the price movements
of the assets contained in a portfolio. Market risk represents what the Company would lose from
price volatilities. Market risk can be measured as the potential gain or loss in a position or
portfolio that is associated with a price movement of a given probability over a specified time
horizon.
i.
Currency risk
Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognized assets and
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the company’s functional currency. Significant
fluctuations in the exchanges rates could significantly affect the Company’s position.
ii.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
iii.
Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss from system failure, human error, fraud, or external events.
When controls fail to perform, operational risk can cause damage to reputation, have legal or
regulatory implications or can lead to financial loss. The Company cannot expect to eliminate all
operational risk but initiating a rigorous control framework and by monitoring and responding to
potential risks, the Company is able to manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation
of duties, access controls, authorization and reconciliation procedures, staff education, and
assessment processes. Business risk such as changes in environment, technology, and industry
are monitored through the Company’s strategic planning and budgeting processes.
Capital management
The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity
balance.
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The Company sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Company manages the capital
structure and adjusts it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may
adjust the dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.
The capital structure of the Company consists of issued capital and retained earnings.
The financial ratio at the year-end, which is within the acceptable range of the Company, is as
follows:
2016
Equity

P9,852,940

P 10,553,473

Total assets

26,659,933

30,539,876

0.37

0.35

Ratio

8.

2015

Cash in banks
The composition of this account as of December 31 is as follows:
Cash in banks

2016

2015

P 4,218,259

P 5,457,974

10,000

10,000

P 4,228,259

P 5,467,974

Cash on hand

Cash accounts with the banks generally earn interest at rates based on prevailing bank deposit
rates.
9.

Receivables
The composition of this account as of December 31 is as follows:
P

Trade

2016

2015

750,065

P 1,602,301

4,561,843

Others

P 5,311,908

P 1,602,301

No allowance for doubtful accounts was provided for the year as management believes that all
accounts are fully collectible.
10.

Other current assets
The composition of this account as of December 31 is as follows:
2016
P

Security deposits

P

98,800

Prepaid rent

78,669

-

Prepaid tax

26,570

-

P

11.

88,109

2015

193,348

P

98,800

Available-for-Sale Investments
In 1998 and prior-years, the company acquired 68% equity in Ambulatory Health Care Institute,
Inc. In 2006 ownership of certain blocks of shares were declared null and void by the Court due
to technical issues. With the declaration, equity ownership was reduced to 47%. Even with
Company’s equity interest, it was not able to exercise significant influence over the associate’s
operating and financial processes, hence the investment was re classified and recognized under
PAS 39 and the related accumulated equity in the net earnings was reversed to retained
earnings.
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During 2013, allowance for impairment was provided in the amount of P2,153,375. The balance
of this account as of December 31, 2014 is P6,460,125, net of allowance for impairment.
On December 21, 2015, the available-for-sale investment was sold to Unipage Management Inc.
in the amount of P8,613,500.
12.

Property and equipment
The movements in this account as of December 31 are as follows:
2016

Medical Office furnitureTransportation

Kind of Property
Cost

Equipment

P 34,194,095 P

Additions / deducttions

535,714

Leasehold

Equipment Improvements

and fixtures

Total

5,208,509 P 2,641,072 P 12,005,545 P 54,049,221
(5,208,509)

34,729,809

(12,005,545)

-

2,641,072

-

(16,678,340)
37,370,881

Accumulated depreciation
and amortizations
Balance at beg of year

18,284,705

4,164,612

995,536

8,487,599

31,932,452

1,805,763

(4,164,612)

269,080

(8,487,599)

(10,577,368)

Depreciation for the year
Balance at end of year
Book Value

20,090,468

-

1,264,616

-

21,355,084

P 14,639,341

-

P 1,376,456

-

P 16,015,797

2015
Kind of Property
Cost

Medical

Office furniture

Transportation

Leasehold

Equipment

and fixtures

Equipment

Improvements

P 34,194,095 P

5,208,509 P

Additions

Total

995,536 P 12,005,545 P 52,403,685
1,645,536

1,645,536

34,194,095

5,208,509

2,641,072

12,005,545

54,049,221

16,478,942

3,751,151

995,536

7,916,516

29,142,145

Accumulated depreciation and
amortizations
Balance at beg of year
Depreciation for the year

1,805,763

413,461

Balance at end of year

18,284,705

4,164,612

Book Value

P 15,909,390 P

995,536

1,043,897 P 1,645,536 P

571,083

2,790,307

8,487,599

31,932,452

3,517,946 P 22,116,769

On January 15, 2016, Managed Care Phil., Inc. (MCPI) entered into an Investment Agreement
with Mr. Willy T. Ong. Both parties agree that the investment consideration shall be the total
book value of the properties amounting to P4,561,843 consisting of (a) leasehold improvements
with a net book value of P3,517,946 and (b) furniture and fixtures with a net book value of
P1,043,897 as of December 31, 2015.
MCPI shall return the investment with premium to the INVESTOR based on the agreed terms and
conditions for a period of Ten (10) years.
13.

Intangible assets
The movement in intangible assets follows:
Cost

2016

2015

P 5,000,000

P 5,000,000

3,950,000

3,600,000

350,000

350,000

Accumulated amortizations
Balance at beginning of year
Provisions
Balance at end of year
Net book value as at December 31

P
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4,300,000

3,950,000

700,000

P 1,050,000

14.

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
This account consists of:
2016
P 1,098,243

Trade

545,567

Accrued expenses

P 1,643,810

15.

2015
P

543,786
238,858

P

782,644

Related party transactions
The following are transactions with related parties during the year:
Transaction
Advances to related party
Palladian Land Development Inc.
2016
No transaction occurred
during the year
2015
Total advances to related party
2016
2015
Advances from related parties
ATN Holdings, Inc.
2016
Payment of advances
Cash advance
2015

Total advances to related party
2016
2015

Terms

Conditions

73,538 no payment
Unsecured
terms no impairment
73,538
73,538
73,538

Transpacific Broadband Group Int'l., Inc.
2016
Payment of advances
Cash advance
2015
Shareholders
2016
Payment of advances
Cash advance
2015

Year-end
balances

Amount

(3,000,000) 11,942,328 no payment
Unsecured
1,520,000
terms no impairment
13,422,328 no payment
Unsecured
terms
no impairment
345,744 no payment
Unsecured
terms no impairment
no payment
Unsecured
terms
no impairment

345,744

(2,785,403)

2,401,905 no payment
Unsecured
terms no impairment
5,187,308 no payment
Unsecured
terms
no impairment
14,689,977
18,609,636

Key management personnel do not derive compensation from the Company.
16.

Pension Liability
Retirement benefit cost recognized in the financial statements computed under RA 7641
amounted to P388,891 in 2014 and P138,118 in 2013. Management believes that retirement
benefits accrued under RA 7641 does not materially differ from that of PAS 19.
2016
P

Balance, January 1

P

21,964

Provision
P

17.

434,979

2015

456,943

388,891
46,088

P

434,979

Share Capital
The company’s authorized, subscribed and paid-up capital consists of:

Authorized-P1.00 par value
Subscribed and paid-up

2016
No. of shares

Amount

100,000,000
25,000,000

P100,000,000
P25,000,000

21

2015
No. of
shares
100,000,000
25,000,000

Amount
P100,000,000
P25,000,000

18.

Deficit
This account consists of:
2016
Balance, January 1

P 14,364,475

2015
P 16,404,366

(782,585)

Add: Net Income (loss) for the period

P 15,147,060

2,039,891
P 14,364,475

19.

Revenues
This account consists of medical services rendered. Revenue is recognized upon completion of
the service.

20.

Direct Cost
This account consists of:
2016
P 1,805,763

P 1,805,763

Utilities, dues and communication

1,536,294

1,406,714

Medical supplies

1,201,737

994,457

Salaries, wages and other benefits

1,190,117

935,847

Rent

1,037,441

964,702

343,905

475,478

Depreciation and amortization

Retainers' fee

81,772

99,170

P 7,197,029

P 6,682,131

Contractual services

21.

2015

Administrative expenses
This account consists of:
2016
619,080

P 1,334,544

Salaries, wages and other benefits

221,000

200,304

Office supplies

182,096

98,101

Miscellaneous

Depreciation and amortization

P

128,839

7,299

Transportation

48,597

49,608

Taxes and licenses

40,080

40,078

Communication

36,273

39,236

Provision for retirement

21,965

46,088

-

Repairs & maintenance

P 1,297,930

22.

2015

4,580
P 1,819,838

Income Taxes
Components of income tax reported in the statements of income are as follows:
2016
Current

P

10,284

2015
P

240,152

P

226,326

(6,589)

Deferred
P
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3,695

(13,826)

The reconciliation of the income tax expense computed at statutory tax rate and the income tax
liability for the current period is as follows:
2016

2015

(233,667) P

Statutory income tax

679,865

Tax effect of:
6,590

Non-deductible expenses

13,826

-

Income subject to capital gains tax

(452,209)

(1,450)

Income subject to final tax

(1,331)

(228,527) P

240,151

The component of the Company’s deferred tax assets is as follows:
2016
Pension liability

23.

2015

P

137,083

P

130,494

P

137,083

P

130,494

Earnings Per Share
The Company’s earnings per share for the period ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 are
computed as follows:
2016
(782,585)

Net income (loss) for during the year

25,000,000

Number of shares issued and outstanding

2015
2,039,891
25,000,000

(0.03)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

0.08

24.

Contracts and commitments
Lease agreement with Minoru Holdings and PNB Holdings
The company leases GF of the Summit One Parking Building for a period of 6 yrs starting August
1, 2006 to July 31, 2022.

25.

Other significant matters
Contingencies
In the normal course of business, the Company may become defendant in lawsuits involving
settlement of insurance claims. The Company recognized adequate provisions in its books to
cover possible losses that may be incurred on these claims. In the opinion of management,
liabilities arising from these claims, if any, will not have material effect on the Company’s
financial position and will have no material impact in the financial statements, taken as a whole.

26.

Other Internal Revenue Matters
In compliance with the requirements se forth by RR 15-2010 hereunder are the information on
taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable year 2016:
VAT Out put t axes
Amount
Gross revenue subject t o VAT

P

VAT input t axes
Amount
Domest ic purchased of goods and services
Ot her t axes, licenses and fees
Local
Business permit
Nat ional
Annual regist rat ion

925,348
7,711,236
529,735
4,414,460

39,580
500

W it hholding t axes
T ax on compensat ion and benefit s
Credit able w it hholding t axes

8,222
87,898
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Deficiency tax assessments and tax cases
The company has no existing deficiency tax assessments.
Supplementary information required under RR 19-2011
Details of direct costs for income tax purposes are as follows:

Depreciation and amortization
Utilities, dues and communication
Medical supplies
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Rent
Retainers' fee
Contractual services

P

1,805,763
1,536,294
1,201,737
1,190,117
1,037,441
343,905
81,772

7,197,029

Details of administrative expenses for income tax purposes are as follows:
Depreciation and amortization
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Office supplies
Miscellaneous
Transportation
Taxes and licenses
Communication

P

P
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619,080
221,000
182,096
128,839
48,597
40,080
36,273
1,275,965

